
 
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL 

WELL-BEING) will be held in the WREN ROOM, COUNTRYSIDE 
CENTRE, HINCHINGBROOKE COUNTRY PARK, BRAMPTON 
ROAD, HUNTINGDON, PE29 6DB on TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009 at 
7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the 
following business:- 

 
 Contact 

(01480) 

 
 APOLOGIES   

 

 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 13th May 2009. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 overleaf. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 3 - 
8) 

 

 

 A copy of the current Forward Plan, which was published on 14th May 
2009, is attached. Members are invited to note the Plan and to 
comment as appropriate on any items contained therein. 
 
10 Minutes. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

4. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC   
 

 

 To resolve:- 
 
 that the public be exempt from the meeting because the 

business to be transacted contains exempt information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the authority. 

 
1 Minute. 
 

 

5. ST NEOTS LEISURE CENTRE DEVELOPMENT  (Pages 9 - 26) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Leisure Centres General Manager on the 
development proposals for St Neots Leisure Centre. 
 
20 Minutes.  

S Bell 
388049 



 
 

6. RE-ADMITTANCE OF THE PUBLIC   
 

 

 To resolve:- 
 
 to re-admit the public. 
 
1 Minute. 
 

 

7. CORPORATE EQUALITY POLICY: ACTION PLAN PROGRESS  
(Pages 27 - 58) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of People, Performance and 
Partnerships on progress made to date in respect of the action plan 
associated with the Corporate Equality Policy. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 

Mrs L Sboui 
388032 

8. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  (Pages 59 - 66) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of People, Performance and 
Partnerships containing details of the Council’s performance against 
its priority objectives. 
 
20 Minutes.  
 

H Thackray 
388035 

9. NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 - 2014: 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE  (Pages 67 - 72) 

 

 

 To endorse the consultation response for NHS Cambridgeshire’s 
Strategic Plan 2009 – 2014. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

10. CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY  (Pages 73 - 74) 
 

 

 To receive a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services 
on the introduction of legislative changes which affect Overview and 
Scrutiny. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

A Roberts 
388015 

11. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - REMITS AND STUDIES  (Pages 75 
- 90) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services 
on the Panel’s remit and role and to consider the Panel’s current 
programme of studies. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A Roberts 
388015 

Miss H Ali 
388006 



 
12. SCRUTINY  (Pages 91 - 96) 
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions as set out in the Decision Digest (TO 
FOLLOW) and to raise any other matters for scrutiny that fall within 
the remit of the Panel. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

   
 Dated this 29 day of May 2009  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No: (01480) 388006 / email: 
Habbiba.Ali@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to 
tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any 
decision taken by the Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 
 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit. 

 
 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) held in the Great Hall, Priory Centre, St 
Neots on Wednesday, 13 May 2009. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillors P L E Bucknell, Mrs K E Cooper, 

S J Criswell, J W Davies, J E Garner, 
Mrs P A Jordan, P G Mitchell, A Monk, 
J M Sadler and R J West. 

 
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 RESOLVED 
 

that Councillor S J Criswell be elected Chairman of the Panel 
for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
Councillor S J Criswell in the Chair. 

 

2. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) held on 7th April 2009 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 No declarations were received. 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   
 

 RESOLVED 
 

that Councillor R J West be appointed Vice-Chairman of the 
Panel for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 

5. CORPORATE PLAN WORKING GROUP   
 

 RESOLVED 
 

that Councillors S J Criswell and R J West be appointed to 
serve on the Corporate Plan Working Group for the ensuing 
Municipal Year. 

 

6. CAMBRIDGESHIRE HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE   
 

 RESOLVED 
 
 that Councillor R J West be appointed to the Cambridgeshire 

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee and that a 
substitute be appointed as and when necessary. 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



 
 
 

Chairman
 

2



 

 
 

F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

r 
I 

C
 B

a
te

s
  

D
a
te

 o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
a
ti

o
n

: 
1
4
 M

a
y
 2

0
0

9
 

F
o

r 
P

e
ri

o
d

: 
1
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0

9
 t

o
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
is

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

 
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

I 
C

 B
a

te
s
 

 
- 

L
e

a
d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

4
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
n

d
 

H
ilt

o
n

 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

  
 P

E
2

8
 9

N
J
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 8
3
0

2
5
0

  
  

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

Ia
n

.B
a

te
s
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

L
 M

 S
im

p
s
o

n
 

 
- 

D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
it
h

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
 

  
R

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
H

Q
/A

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o

n
 

4
5

 D
e

v
o

k
e
 C

lo
s
e

 
S

tu
k
e
le

y
 M

e
a

d
o

w
s
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 
C

a
m

b
s
  

  
 P

E
2
9

 6
X

E
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
4
6

  
  

  
  

E
-m

a
il:

  
M

ik
e

.S
im

p
s
o

n
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

K
 J

 C
h

u
rc

h
ill

 
- 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
5

1
 G

o
rd

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
L

it
tl
e

 P
a

x
to

n
 

S
t 

N
e

o
ts

 
P

E
1

9
 6

N
J
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
5
2

0
4
0
 

E
-m

a
il:

  
K

e
n
.C

h
u

rc
h

ill
@

h
u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

D
 B

 D
e

w
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

  
  

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
4

 W
e
ir

 R
o

a
d

 
H

e
m

in
g

fo
rd

 G
re

y
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

  
P

E
2

8
 9

E
H

 
 T

e
l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 4
6
9

8
1
4

  
  

  
  

E
-m

a
il:

  
D

o
u
g

la
s
.D

e
w

@
h

u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
 A

 G
ra

y
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
  

  
  

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

 

S
h

u
ff

le
w

ic
k
 C

o
tt
a

g
e

 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
w

 
T

ilb
ro

o
k
 

P
E

2
8

 O
J
Y

 
 T

e
l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

  
8
6

1
9

4
1

  
  
  

E
-m

a
il:

  
J
G

@
n
o

v
a

e
.c

o
m

 

Agenda Item 3

3



 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

C
 R

 H
y
a

m
s
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

O
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
  

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
2

 B
lu

e
g

a
te

 
G

o
d

m
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

 
C

a
m

b
s
 P

E
2

9
 2

E
Z

 
 T

e
l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
6
8

  
  

  
  
 

E
-m

a
il:

  
C

o
lin

.H
y
a

m
s
@

h
u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

A
 H

a
n
s
a

rd
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

  
a

n
d

 P
o

lic
y
 

7
8

 P
o

tt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 
E

y
n

e
s
b

u
ry

 
S

t 
N

e
o

ts
 

P
E

1
9

 2
N

N
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
4
2

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

A
n
d

re
w

.H
a

n
s
a

rd
@

h
u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
rs

 D
 C

 R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

L
e

is
u

re
 

1
7

 V
ir

g
in

ia
 W

a
y
 

S
t 

Iv
e

s
 

P
E

2
7

 6
S

Q
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
3
5

  
 

E
-m

a
il:

  
D

e
b
o

ra
h

.R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
 V

 R
o

g
e

rs
 

  
- 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
 

H
o

n
e

y
s
u

c
k
le

 C
o

tt
a
g

e
 

3
4

 M
e

a
d

o
w

 L
a

n
e

 
E

a
ri

th
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

  
  

 P
E

2
8

 3
Q

E
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
7

 8
4
0

4
7
7

  
  

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

T
e

re
n
c
e

.R
o

g
e

rs
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 A
n

y
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
h

o
 w

is
h

e
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
a
b

o
u

t 
a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 m
a

y
 d

o
 s

o
 b

y
 c

o
n

ta
c
ti
n

g
 M

rs
 H

e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r,
 S

e
n

io
r 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
n
 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8
0

0
8

 o
r 

E
-m

a
il:

  
 H

e
le

n
.T

a
y
lo

r@
h

u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

n
o
t 

le
s
s
 t
h

a
n

 1
4

 d
a

y
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

 T
h

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

o
ff
ic

e
r 

s
h

o
w

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 p
la

n
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
o

n
 t

h
e
 

m
a

tt
e

r 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

 S
im

ila
rl

y
 a

n
y
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
u
b

je
c
t 

o
r 

m
a

tt
e

r 
to

 b
e

 t
a

b
le

d
 f

o
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
ir
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

o
ff
ic

e
r.

 
 R

o
y
 R

e
e

v
e

s
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

te
s
:-

 
(i

) 
A

d
d

it
io

n
s
/s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 a
re

 a
n

n
o

ta
te

d
 *

**
 

 
(i

i)
 

F
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 p

le
a
s
e

 s
e

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
s
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 a

t 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
/N

R
/r

d
o

n
ly

re
s
/3

F
6

C
F

E
2

8
-

C
5

F
0

-4
B

A
0

-9
B

F
2

-7
6

E
B

A
E

0
6
C

8
9

D
/0

/P
e

ti
ti
o
n

s
le

a
fl
e

t.
p
d

f 
o

r 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e

 0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

0
0

6
 

 

 

S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

4



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 N
e

w
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
U

n
it
s
, 

C
a

x
to

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

S
t.

 I
v
e

s
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 N
o

n
e

. 
 

 K
e

it
h

 P
h
ill

ip
s
, 

E
s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8
8

2
6
0

  
e
m

a
il 

- 
K

e
it
h

.P
h
ill

ip
s
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 N
o

t 
a

p
p
lic

a
b

le
  

 A
 H

a
n

s
a

rd
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 S
t.

 N
e

o
ts

 L
e
is

u
re

 
C

e
n

tr
e

 -
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 N
o

n
e

 
 

 S
im

o
n
 B

e
ll,

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 L
e

is
u

re
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

0
4
9

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

S
im

o
n
.B

e
ll@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 N
o

t 
a

p
p
lic

a
b

le
  

 M
rs

 D
 C

 
R

e
y
n

o
ld

s
 

 

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 

P
o

lic
y
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 

P
o

lic
y
 -

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

 

 M
rs

 L
o

u
is

e
 S

b
o

u
i,
 P

o
lic

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

0
3

2
 o

r 
e
m

a
il 

L
o

u
is

e
.S

b
o

u
i@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 (

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
) 

E
q

u
a

lit
y
 

S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

  

 A
 H

a
n

s
a

rd
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 C

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 

P
o

lic
y
 o

f 
G

y
p

s
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
T

ra
v
e

lle
rs

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 P
la

n
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
P

a
n

e
l 
o
n

 
G

y
p

s
y
 a

n
d

 T
ra

v
e

lle
r 

P
o

lic
y
 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
R

ic
h

a
rd

.P
ro

b
y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 H
D

C
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 G
o

-
E

a
s
t 

 

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 C
a

rb
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 N
o

n
e

. 
 

 C
h

ri
s
 J

a
b
lo

n
s
k
i,
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 L

e
a
d

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8
8

3
6
8

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

C
h

ri
s
.J

a
b
lo

n
s
k
i@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 J
 A

 G
ra

y
 

 

 E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 A

c
t 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 A

c
t 

2
0

0
7

 
 

 M
rs

 C
o

rr
in

e
 G

a
rb

e
tt

, 
A

c
ti
n

g
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
P

e
o
p

le
, 

P
e

fo
rm

a
n

c
e

 &
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 
3

8
8

4
5
9

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

C
o

rr
in

e
.G

a
rb

e
tt

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 I 

C
 B

a
te

s
 

 

 E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 C
o

v
e

rt
 S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 
P

o
lic

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 J
u

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 P

o
lic

y
 

L
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

 

 W
a
y
la

n
d

 S
m

a
lle

y
, 

S
o
lic

it
o

r 
T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4
8

0
 

3
8

8
0

2
2

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

 
W

a
y
la

n
d

.S
m

a
lle

y
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 In
te

rn
a
l 
S

te
e

ri
n
g

 
G

ro
u

p
  

 A
 H

a
n

s
a

rd
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

5



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 L
a

n
d

 A
d

ja
c
e

n
t 
to

 -
 t
h

e
 

G
ra

n
d

 C
in

e
m

a
, 

R
a

m
s
e

y
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
6

 J
u

l 
2
0

0
9

 
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
- 

7
th

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

 
 

 K
e

it
h

 P
h
ill

ip
s
, 

E
s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8
8

2
6
0

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

K
e

it
h

.P
h
ill

ip
s
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 A

 H
a

n
s
a

rd
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 G
re

a
t 

F
e

n
 

C
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
3

 J
u

l 
2
0

0
9

 
 

 N
o

n
e

 
 

 M
a

lc
o

lm
 S

h
a

rp
, 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8

8
3

0
1

 e
m

a
il 

- 
M

a
lc

o
lm

.S
h
a

rp
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 D

 B
 D

e
w

 
 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 -

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p
o

rt
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
3

 J
u

l 
2
0

0
9

 
 

 N
o

n
e

. 
 

 S
im

o
n
 B

e
ll,

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 L
e

is
u

re
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8

8
0

4
9
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
S

im
o

n
.B

e
ll@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 M

rs
 D

 C
 

R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
 

 

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 A
1

4
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 O
rd

e
rs

 
C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
3

 J
u

l 
2
0

0
9

 
 

 N
o

n
e

. 
 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8
8

4
3
0

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 E
n

d
o

rs
e

 H
D

C
’s

 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

o
rd

e
rs

  

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

id
e

 a
n
d

 
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 
T

a
ri

ff
**

* 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
7

 S
e

p
 2

0
0
9

 
 

 L
o

c
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
R

ic
h

a
rd

.P
ro

b
y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

  

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t*

**
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
7

 S
e

p
 2

0
0
9

 
 

 P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 O

p
ti
o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

  

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

6



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 S
t.

 I
v
o

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
- 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t*

**
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
7

 S
e

p
 2

0
0
9

 
 

 N
o

n
e

 
 

 S
im

o
n
 B

e
ll,

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 L
e

is
u

re
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

0
4
9

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

S
im

o
n
.B

e
ll@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 M

rs
 D

 C
 

R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
 

 

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 G
re

a
t 

F
e

n
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
7

 S
e

p
 2

0
0
9

 
 

 N
o

n
e

 
 

 M
a

lc
o

lm
 S

h
a

rp
, 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8

8
3

0
1

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

M
a

lc
o

lm
.S

h
a

rp
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n

 
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o
n

. 
 

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

s
 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n

t 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
7

 S
e

p
 2

0
0
9

 
 

 H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n
s
h

ir
e

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
s
 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8
8

4
3
0

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

r 
C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
  

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 S
it
e

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 G

y
p

s
y
 

a
n

d
 T

ra
v
e

lle
rs

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t*

**
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
2

 O
c
t 

2
0

0
9

 
 

 Is
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 O
p
ti
o

n
s
 

P
a

p
e

r 
 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
R

ic
h

a
rd

.P
ro

b
y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

  

 D
 B

 D
e

w
 

 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

W
e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 

 7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (SOCIAL WELL-BEING)            2nd June 2009 
     
CABINET          18th June 2009 
              
 
 

CORPORATE EQUALITY POLICY – ACTION PLAN PROGRESS 
(Report by the Head of People, Performance and Partnerships) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Cabinet of progress with 

the council’s Corporate Equality Policy (CEP) Action Plan.  
  
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The CEP sets out the Council’s aim and objectives for equality and 

the accompanying action plan sets out the corporate and directorate 
actions and targets. It is supported by three equality schemes (Race, 
Disability and Gender). The action plan combines activities which are 
compatible with the Councils achievement of Level 2 of the Equality 
Standard for Local Government (the Equality Standard) and the 
statutory requirements contained within the three equality schemes.  

 
2.2 The CEP and action plan shows how the Council will translate its 

statutory responsibilities into objectives and actions and in particular 
takes account of: 

• Equalities legislation relating to race, disability and gender 

• The achievement against the Equality Standard 
 

2.3 In working towards achieving Level 3 of the Equality Standard, the 
Council is in a process of assessing the impact of all services in terms 
of the needs of service users. A three year timetable was adopted 
with those services with a more ‘public facing’ role placed in years 1 
and 2. Equality Impact Assessments are a statutory requirement and 
they are the primary method by which the Council can assess 
whether it is providing equal access to services in terms race, 
disability and gender. Many of the equality impact assessments have 
also considered other issues such as sexuality, religious belief and 
age.   

 
3. Equality Framework for Local Government  

 
3.1  The Equality Framework for Local Government was introduced in 

April 2009 to replace the Equality Standard for Local government. 
The new Framework has fewer indicators and an emphasis on self 
assessment and peer challenge. It relates better to the performance 
framework for local government and uses a broader definition of 
equality. 

 
3.2         The Framework will consist of 3 levels; ‘Developing’, ‘Achieving’ and 

‘Excellent’ (the Equality Standard had 5); all councils at Level 3 of the 
Standard will automatically transfer over to the Achieving level within 
the new Framework.  

Agenda Item 7

27



 

 
3.3   The Council will be undergoing an external assessment for validation 

of achievement against Level 3 of the Equality Standard in July. If 
councils can achieve Level 3 before September 2009 they 
automatically transfer over to the Achieving level within the new 
Framework. If we can do this it will demonstrate considerable 
achievement made by the Council and it will reduce the burden of 
additional assessment in the future. 

 
 
4. PROGRESS 
  
4.1 The Corporate Equality Policy identified two outcomes and two  
 measures that will tell us how successful we have been in terms of 
 understanding the diverse needs of local people, that our services 
 meet those needs and that they are provided in a fair and accessible 
 way.  These outcomes and measures are: 
  

Outcome Measure 2006/07 Target 
(2007/8) 

Actual 
2007/08 

Target 
for 
2008/09 

That our 
services are 
provided in 
ways that 
meet diverse 
local needs 

% of local 
people who 
believe that 
Council 
services 
meet their 
needs 

* baseline 
not 
available 

*75% 84% 85 % 

That the 
Council is 
recognised 
for promoting 
equality and 
inclusion in 
communities 

% of local 
people who 
believe that 
the Council 
promotes 
equality and 
inclusion in 
their 
community 

64% 70% 83% 85% 

 
4.2 Residents’ perception of how well we are doing in this area are 

usually measured through an annual survey. However in 2008/09 the 
Council was required to carry out a Place Survey and it was decided 
not to carry out a separate survey on the grounds of additional cost 
and potential duplication.  

 
4.3 There were two questions within the Place Survey, included in the 

table below. We need to consider how to measure progress in the 
future; we will amend the corporate equality policy to reflect any 
changes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



 

2008/09 Place Survey  Actual  

To what extent do you agree or disagree that your local 
area is a place where people from different backgrounds 
get on well together 

79.4%  
(77% in 06/07  

In the last year would you say that you have been treated 
with respect and consideration by your local public 
services 

78.9%  
 

  
4.4 The appended progress report covers: 

Ø the achievement made against the actions and targets set in 
March 2008 (appendix 1) 

Ø an action plan for 2009/10 (appendix 2) 
Ø results from equality impact assessments conducted over 

the last 12 months (appendix 3) 
Ø revised timetable for equality impact assessments during 

2009/10 (appendix 4) 
 

4.5 The Corporate Equality Policy Action Plan for 2008/09 contained 26 
actions, of   which         

Ø 15 have been fully completed 
Ø 11 are on-going 
 

4.6 Twenty seven individual services were selected to undertake equality 
 impact assessments (EIA’s)  during 2008/09. 17 services completed 
 all of their EIA’s; 4 services completed some of their EIA’s and 6 
 services didn’t complete any of their EIA’s. Those not completed on 
 time have been re-scheduled for  completion  during 2009/10. A 
 list of outcomes/actions arising out  of completed equality impact 
 assessments is contained in Appendix 3. A revised timetable for 
 equality impact assessments during 2009/10 is set out in  Appendix 4. 
 
4.7 The Corporate Equality Steering Group (comprising officers from all 
 three directorates plus an employee representative) is responsible for 
 overseeing progress with the equality standard and equality impact 
 assessments. Actions that come out of equality impact 
 assessments will be delivered through individual services  however, 
the steering group takes an overview and co-ordinates  activity to ensure 
there is no duplication of work.  
  
4.8 An initial equality impact assessment establishes how the policy or 
 service meets different needs and also examines  whether there are 
 any obvious barriers and if any improvements can be made. All of the 
 assessments conducted over the last 12 months  needed only an 
 initial assessment; a full assessment is required if areas of 
 concern are identified.  
  
4.9   The Council has a statutory responsibility to report findings from   

 progress made with the equality schemes, as set out in Appendix 1.  
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1   The Council has a revenue budget of £11.400 to meet the direct cost  
 of the corporate equality policy – mainly training and assessment. In 
 response to financial pressures this budget was reduced by 10% last 
 year; otherwise costs involved are – the time taken to review and 
 make changes to services/policies in response to assessment of 
 residents needs. This also helps to achieve our statutory 

29



 

 responsibilities. The assessments undertaken have not results in any 
 significant expenditure and the Council is making a proportionate but 
 effective response to statutory and business requirements.  
 
 
6. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
6.1         Cabinet is asked: 

Ø to note progress made with the corporate equality policy 
action plan (Appendix 1) 

Ø endorse the new corporate equality action plan (Appendix 2) 
Ø to note the findings from equality impact assessments 

conducted during 2007/08 (Appendix 3) 
Ø endorse the revised equality impact assessment timetable 

set out in Appendix 4. 
 
 
Background Papers 
Corporate Equality Policy 
 
Contact Officers:  Corrine Garbett Head of People, Performance & 

Partnerships   
   (01480 388459 
    
   Louise Sboui, Senior Policy Officer   
   ( 01480 388032 
   louise.sboui@huntsdc.gov.uk 

30



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
1
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 P
o
li
c
y
 -
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 w
o
rk
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

•
 
E
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
lin
k
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 P
D
R
’s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
E
IA
’s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m
e
t 

w
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

S
o
 f
a
r 
a
ll 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m
e
t 

th
ro
u
g
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

K
e
e
p
 R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 t
o
 a
lig
n
 w
it
h
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

L
in
k
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 b
y
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

E
IA
 o
f 
R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
 

E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
rs
 (
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
) 
d
a
ta
. 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
ro
fi
le
s
 b
y
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 
: 

•
 
A
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
r 
s
u
ff
e
r 
d
e
tr
im
e
n
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
d
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
  

H
R
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 b
y
 M
a
y
 

2
0
0
9
  
 

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
la
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk
e
t 
(L
L
M
A
) 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 H
R
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 P
o
lic
y
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

31



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
2
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 w
o
rk
  

C
o
m
p
le
te
 E
IA
 o
f 
R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

E
IA
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 J
u
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
to
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d
a
ta
, 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o
f:
 

•
 
P
a
y
 g
a
p
 

•
 
Im

p
o
rt
e
d
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
fe
m
a
le
s
 i
n
to
 h
ig
h
 g
ra
d
e
s
 

•
 
m
a
le
s
 i
n
to
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 g
ra
d
e
d
 8
-1
3
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
, 
w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
 

E
n
s
u
re
 g
e
n
d
e
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 
e
q
u
a
l 
p
a
y
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
re
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
H
R
 p
o
lic
ie
s
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
, 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
3
 y
e
a
r 

ro
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
H
R
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

R
a
is
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
/m
o
n
it
o
r/
e
v
a
lu
a
te
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 

a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 l
if
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 b
o
th
 m

a
le
 a
n
d
 f
e
m
a
le
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 (
fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

E
IA
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 l
if
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
) 

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
y
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
fe
e
l 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 g
e
n
d
e
r 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 (
d
ig
n
it
y
 a
t 
W
o
rk
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

F
ir
s
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t)
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 w
h
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

P
a
rt
ia
l 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 

th
e
re
 a
re
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

th
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

E
n
s
u
re
 a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 i
n
 

o
b
ta
in
in
g
 a
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
a
m
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

N
e
x
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
: 

•
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 (
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
) 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
 (
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
) 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
in
g
le
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
) 

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 f
u
lly
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 

32



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
3
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 w
o
rk
  

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 E
IA
 o
f:
 

•
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

•
 
D
ig
n
it
y
 a
t 
W
o
rk
 P
o
lic
y
  

•
 
G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 P
o
lic
y
  

•
 
O
p
e
n
 O
u
t 
 

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
E
IA
 o
f 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 &
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

P
a
rt
ia
l 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 r
a
c
e
/d
is
a
b
ili
ty
/g
e
n
d
e
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 c
h
ie
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
, 
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ra
c
e
/d
is
a
b
ili
ty
/g
e
n
d
e
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 w
o
rk
 

o
n
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

fo
r 
P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 

fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
le
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 –
 s
e
e
 E
IA
 o
f 

L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
a
re
 P
o
lic
y
. 

A
ls
o
: 

•
 
R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 a
t 
S
t 

N
e
o
ts
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 (
lo
w
e
r 
d
e
s
k
s
)  

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

33



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
4
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
  

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 w
o
rk
  

•
 
F
it
n
e
s
s
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 a
im
e
d
 

a
t 
le
s
s
 m
o
b
ile
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
  

G
re
a
te
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
C
T
 f
o
r 
d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 I
n
tr
a
n
e
t/
In
te
rn
e
t 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
  

L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
C
o
m
m
it
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 g
ro
u
p
s
/i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 

  A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 o
f 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
s
e
lf
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 P
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

If
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 

S
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 t
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

fo
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
il 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

    

34



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

 
1
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 P
o
li
c
y
 -
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
  
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

•
 
E
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
lin
k
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 P
D
R
’s
 

H
R
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
rs
 (
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
) 
d
a
ta
. 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
ro
fi
le
s
 b
y
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 
: 

•
 
A
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
r 
s
u
ff
e
r 
d
e
tr
im
e
n
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
d
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

•
 
T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
  

H
R
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
to
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d
a
ta
, 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
n
 

te
rm
s
 o
f:
 

•
 
P
a
y
 g
a
p
 

•
 
fe
m
a
le
s
 i
n
to
 h
ig
h
 g
ra
d
e
s
 

•
 
m
a
le
s
 i
n
to
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 g
ra
d
e
d
 8
-1
3
 

H
R
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
la
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk
e
t 
(L
L
M
A
) 

H
R
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

C
o
m
p
le
te
 E
IA
 o
f 
R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 E
IA
 o
f 
D
ig
n
it
y
 a
t 
W
o
rk
 P
o
lic
y
  

H
R
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 w
h
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

H
R
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

E
n
s
u
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 i
n
 o
b
ta
in
in
g
 a
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
a
m
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

P
o
lic
y
  

S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
  

35



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

 
2
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
  
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
: 

•
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
  

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
  

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
in
g
le
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
g
e
, 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 

e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r,
 r
e
lig
io
u
s
 b
e
lie
f 
a
n
d
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
) 

 P
o
lic
y
  

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

P
ro
d
u
c
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

P
o
lic
y
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 &
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

P
o
lic
y
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 r
a
c
e
/d
is
a
b
ili
ty
/g
e
n
d
e
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 c
h
ie
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
, 
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

P
o
lic
y
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 r
a
c
e
/d
is
a
b
ili
ty
/g
e
n
d
e
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
  

P
o
lic
y
  

S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
0
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

P
o
lic
y
 

S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
0
 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
  
 

P
o
lic
y
  

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
  

g
ro
u
p
s
/i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

P
o
lic
y
  

   

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 L
iv
in
g
 &
 W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 b
o
o
k
le
t 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
it
it
a
ti
v
e
s
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 o
f 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

P
o
lic
y
  

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

  

36



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
 

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 –
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 

N
a
m
e
 o
f 
p
o
li
c
y
 o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
/i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

T
a
rg
e
t/
d
a
te
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

A
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
  

A
d
d
re
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 

c
a
rs
 p
a
rk
e
d
 o
n
 g
ra
s
s
 v
e
rg
e
s
 e
tc
  

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ti
c
k
e
rs
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
 f
o
r 
s
a
le
 a
n
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 p
a
rk
e
d
 o
n
 g
ra
s
s
 v
e
rg
e
s
 –
 i
f 
y
o
u
 

n
e
e
d
 a
 t
ra
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 c
a
ll 
0
1
4
8
0
 3
8
8
3
8
8
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

B
a
ili
ff
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

W
h
ils
t 
n
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w
e
re
 r
a
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
n
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 (
o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
) 
a
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 c
o
m
p
lie
s
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 H
D
C
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
. 
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
: 

•
 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c
h
e
c
k
 a
ll 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fo
rm
s
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 b
a
ili
ff
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 H
D
C
 

p
o
lic
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 u
p
h
e
ld
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

•
 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 b
a
ili
ff
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
rs
o
n
, 

o
r 
a
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
w
h
o
 m
a
y
 b
e
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t,
 e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
, 
o
r 

d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

•
 
A
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
la
rg
e
 f
o
rm
a
t 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 s
ix
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 a
 

ra
n
d
o
m
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 b
a
ili
ff
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
y
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 

    O
n
-g
o
in
g
  

   O
n
-g
o
in
g
  

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
0
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
  

37



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
2
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m
a
tt
e
rs
 o
n
 

th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 P
D
P
’s
. 

  S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
  

 

C
a
ra
v
a
n
 a
n
d
 c
a
m
p
in
g
  

O
v
e
ra
ll 
th
is
 i
n
it
ia
l 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
w
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
re
 

in
c
lu
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 n
o
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 

 

C
h
a
rt
e
re
d
 m
a
rk
e
ts
 

•
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
m
a
rk
e
t 
tr
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

d
a
ta
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm
 

•
 
D
ra
w
 u
p
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 m
a
rk
e
t 
g
u
id
e
 

M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

(C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
) 
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
rm
 w
h
e
n
 s
e
n
d
in
g
 o
u
t 

fo
rm
a
l 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
ll 
6
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 n
e
w
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
n
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 e
.g
. 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 t
h
a
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 n
e
w
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 n
e
w
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 f
o
rm
s
 a
re
 i
n
 P
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fo
rm
a
ts
 e
.g
. 
la
rg
e
 p
ri
n
t 
e
tc
. 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 D
M
T
s
. 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
n
 

S
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

  M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

  D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  
 

M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

 

38



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
3
 

a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
. 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 o
u
t 

M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

T
o
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
n
y
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
tr
e
a
te
d
 
u
n
fa
ir
ly
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
: 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
y
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

tr
e
a
te
d
 u
n
fa
ir
ly
 a
n
d
 s
h
a
re
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
. 
 I
f 

a
n
y
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 

v
ia
 t
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
. 

•
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 i
f 
y
o
u
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
is
 i
n
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
fo
rm
a
t.
 

•
 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
: 

•
 
D
e
te
rm
in
e
 i
f 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
a
f,
 h
a
rd
 o
f 

h
e
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 v
is
u
a
lly
 i
m
p
a
ir
e
d
. 
 A
ls
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 m
o
b
ili
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

&
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
. 

•
 
U
s
in
g
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
d
a
ta
, 
c
ro
s
s
 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 
e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
d
e
r 
(w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
) 
w
it
h
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 o
n
-l
in
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 
T
ra
in
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 r
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

•
 
A
ll 
n
e
w
 
s
ta
rt
e
rs
 
to
 
a
tt
e
n
d
 
th
e
 
½
 
d
a
y
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 
&
 
D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

c
o
u
rs
e
. 
  

•
 
A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 o
n
-l
in
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 &
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

   A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

   D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

  M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
  

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 (
o
n
c
e
 

s
e
t 
u
p
) 

39



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
4
 

•
 
T
ra
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
o
n
 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
fo
r 
tr
a
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
. 

E
n
s
u
re
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
lit
e
ra
tu
re
 
a
n
d
 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
is
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
fo
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
: 

•
 
H
ig
h
lig
h
t 
s
ig
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
ig
n
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
 E
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

b
lin
d
 o
r 
p
a
rt
ia
lly
 s
ig
h
te
d
. 
 U
s
e
 t
h
is
 t
o
 r
o
le
 o
u
t 
th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

S
t 
Iv
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
S
t 
N
e
o
ts
. 
 
E
n
s
u
re
 
th
e
 
n
e
w
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
re
 D
D
A
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t.
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
b
 p
a
g
e
 t
h
a
t 
is
 f
u
lly
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

•
 
D
is
p
la
y
 
c
le
a
r 
s
ig
n
a
g
e
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 
to
 
a
s
k
 
fo
r 

a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
: 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
e
a
m
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

u
s
in
g
 g
a
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
  

•
 
R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 
fo
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
to
 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

re
g
u
la
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 
 M
ic
h
e
lle
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
s
. 

•
 
T
ra
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
to
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
, 
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
th
e
ir
 
o
w
n
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

   J
u
ly
 2
0
1
0
 

    J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

  J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

  D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
  

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 H
D
C
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 6
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
tr
a
n
d
s
 -
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
ll 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
fo
re
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 l
o
c
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 H
D
C
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 g
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 6
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

s
tr
a
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 -
 T
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
y
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

   Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f
ro
m
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

40



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
5
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
  

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 f
u
tu
re
 r
e
v
is
io
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
 i
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
o
rm
a
ts
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 &
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

•
 
P
ro
d
u
c
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

Im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
  

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 m
ix
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 

p
ro
fi
lin
g
 -
 c
o
m
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 d
a
ta
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 s
e
t 
u
p
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 w
it
h
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

fo
r 
re
g
u
la
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 i
te
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 E
IA
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
e
d
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 -
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

  J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

T
a
k
e
 U
p
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
r 
c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 ‘
m
a
k
e
 u
p
’ 
o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
- 

c
o
m
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 w
e
 h
o
ld
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
  

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 s
e
t 
u
p
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 w
it
h
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

fo
r 
re
g
u
la
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 i
te
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 E
IA
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 
  

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 n
o
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
la
im
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
re
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
s
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
/a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
a
y
 -
 u
s
e
 M
o
s
a
ic
 

d
a
ta
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 m
o
s
t 
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
e
d
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 -
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

    S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

41



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
6
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
p
p
e
a
ls
 

•
 
M
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

/ 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 /
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 i
f 
B
M
E
’s
 f
e
e
l 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
in
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 
In
v
it
e
 o
th
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

 

B
y
 2
0
1
0
 

  F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

 S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
  

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 f
o
n
t 
s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 s
ty
le
 o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 p
re
s
s
 

n
o
ti
c
e
s
  

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
m
e
n
d
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

s
it
e
/p
re
s
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
fo
rm
a
ts
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 i
f 
a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
 o
r 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
th
e
y
 a
re
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
th
a
t 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

a
v
o
id
e
d
 a
n
d
/o
r 
in
c
lu
d
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 n
e
x
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 b
y
 r
a
c
e
/a
g
e
/d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
if
 a
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
P
A
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 a
 

p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
e
ig
h
e
d
 u
p
 

in
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
y
 2
0
1
0
 

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

   F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
M
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 a
ll 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 /
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 /
 

tr
a
in
in
g
. 
 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 i
f 
B
M
E
’s
 f
e
e
l 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
in
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 f
ro
m
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 i
f 
ju
d
g
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 ‘
h
a
rm
 s
c
o
re
’.
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

  F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

42



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
7
 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 i
f 
th
e
 ‘
h
a
rm
 s
c
o
re
’ 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 

•
 
In
v
it
e
 o
th
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

B
y
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
  

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 /
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 /
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

•
 
U
p
d
a
te
 S
C
I 
 

 •
 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 G
y
p
s
y
 a
n
d
 T
ra
v
e
lle
r 
S
it
e
s
 D
P
D
 

a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
is
s
u
e
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 r
a
c
e
. 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 p
la
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 
A
ll 
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 m
e
th
o
d
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

•
 
In
v
it
e
 o
th
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

B
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 P
re
p
a
re
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 b
y
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
 o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
fr
a
m
e
 

fo
r 
th
is
 w
o
rk
  

D
e
c
is
io
n
 b
y
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
0
  

P
re
lim
in
a
ry
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 a
b
o
u
t 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
(P
E
N
Q
) 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
if
 a
ll 
p
re
lim
in
a
ry
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 o
u
g
h
t 
to
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 o
n
 p
re
lim
in
a
ry
 a
d
v
ic
e
 g
iv
e
n
 i
n
 p
h
o
n
e
 

c
a
lls
, 
e
m
a
ils
 a
n
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 s
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 o
n
e
 t
e
a
m
 c
a
n
 

tr
a
c
e
 a
n
o
th
e
r’
s
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
. 

•
 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
s
e
 c
le
a
r,
 j
a
rg
o
n
-f
re
e
 

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
. 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
m
e
n
d
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 f
o
rm
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
I 
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
o
rm
a
ts
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
if
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l’s
 P
E
N
Q
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
to
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 i
f 
a
n
 e
n
q
u
ir
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
e
rs
 

a
re
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
th
a
t 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
v
o
id
e
d
 

B
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

  

43



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
8
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
if
 a
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
P
A
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 a
 

p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
e
ig
h
e
d
 u
p
 

in
 a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 p
re
lim
in
a
ry
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
. 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
lic
y
 

•
 
W
h
e
n
e
v
e
r 
te
n
a
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

•
 
A
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
v
a
c
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
v
it
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 u
p
d
a
te
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 

in
 p
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 

•
 
A
d
v
e
rt
is
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

•
 
In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
p
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
s
im
p
lif
y
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

•
 
W
h
e
n
e
v
e
r 
a
n
y
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
, 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
D
D
A
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
F
ra
u
d
 P
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 m
ix
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 p
ro
fi
lin
g
. 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
e
d
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 

H
o
m
e
 e
n
e
rg
y
  

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
o
g
g
e
d
 o
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
e
a
s
y
 I
n
te
rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
T
o
 c
o
m
p
a
re
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 g
a
th
e
re
d
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
s
 

o
f 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
h
e
c
k
 f
o
r 
d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 
B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
n
y
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
ic
h
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
  

 2
0
0
9
  

 2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
 

  2
0
0
9
  

44



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
9
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 %
 o
f 
re
tu
rn
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
t 
o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 m
e
d
ia
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
o
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

 2
0
0
9
  

2
0
0
9
  

 2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
  

F
le
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
  

•
 
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
n
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 w
e
e
k
 o
r 
le
a
fl
e
ts
, 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 i
n
 h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
s
, 
s
ta
ff
 m
a
g
a
z
in
e
s
 e
tc
. 
A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
lin
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

•
 
P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
fo
rm
s
 o
f 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 e
.g
. 
te
rm
 t
im
e
 o
r 

c
o
m
p
re
s
s
e
d
 h
o
u
rs
, 
jo
b
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 h
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 e
tc
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
e
rm
 t
im
e
/c
o
m
p
re
s
s
e
d
 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 f
le
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm
a
l 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 u
p
ta
k
e
 o
f 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 e
.g
. 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 e
.g
. 

h
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
, 
p
a
rt
 t
im
e
, 
jo
b
 s
h
a
re
, 
te
rm
 t
im
e
 o
r 
c
o
m
p
re
s
s
e
d
 

h
o
u
rs
. 

•
 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
s
 m
a
n
y
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
, 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 v
a
lid
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
le
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
. 

•
 
E
m
p
h
a
s
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 i
t 

p
ro
m
o
te
s
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 h
u
m
a
n
 r
ig
h
ts
. 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

–
 f
ro
m
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

 O
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 

    M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

    M
a
y
/J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

  T
h
ro
u
g
h
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

–
 f
ro
m
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

•
 
G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
G
e
n
d
e
r 
/ 
R
a
c
e
 /
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 f
ro
m
 1
s
t  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 

•
 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
in
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
th
e
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
s
 

b
e
in
g
 r
a
is
e
d
 /
 w
h
a
t 
a
re
a
s
 o
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
?
 /
 a
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
n
y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

 

45



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
0
 

p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
?
 

•
 
L
o
o
k
 a
t 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 o
n
 E
x
it
 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
le
a
v
e
rs
 w
h
o
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 h
a
d
 a
 g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 p
o
lic
y
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 E
L
A
G
 /
 U
n
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
y
 (
w
h
a
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
?
) 

•
 
C
la
ri
fy
 w
h
a
t 
s
ta
g
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 –
 i
n
it
ia
l 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r?
 H
o
w
 i
s
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
/h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
o
 H
R
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
re
 f
u
lly
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
  

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
rm
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 d
ir
e
c
to
ry
 

h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
. 

 A
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 O
c
to
b
e
r/
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

re
v
ie
w
s
 

•
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 –
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld
 f
a
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 P
D
R
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

•
 
P
D
R
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 f
a
ir
 a
n
d
 

e
q
u
it
a
b
le
. 

•
 
H
R
 t
o
 c
o
lle
c
t 
s
ta
ts
 o
n
 h
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 P
D
R
 /
 

h
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
?
 

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 b
y
 o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
, 
p
a
y
 s
c
a
le
, 
e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
  

g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
g
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 f
u
ll-
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
-t
im
e
 s
ta
ff
. 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
c
o
re
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

  A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
  

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 p
o
lic
y
  

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
s
k
ill
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
n
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 c
ri
te
ri
a
. 
 

  •
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
e
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
tr
a
n
d
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

A
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
ri
s
e
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

 

46



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
1
 

h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
u
n
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
  

•
 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

•
 
C
o
lle
c
t 
d
a
ta
 v
ia
 e
x
it
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 o
n
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 a
n
y
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

  

•
 
M
a
k
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
e
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
c
le
a
r 
a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
. 
 

•
 
M
a
k
e
 c
le
a
r 
in
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
y
 w
o
rd
in
g
 w
h
o
 i
t 
a
p
p
lie
s
 t
o
 (
i.
e
. 
n
o
t 

a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
 e
tc
 

•
 
N
e
e
d
s
 U
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 /
 R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

O
n
 a
 w
e
e
k
ly
 b
a
s
is
 a
s
 

E
x
it
 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 a
re
 

re
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 p
a
y
  

•
 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 a
t 
H
D
C
 b
y
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
p
a
id
 i
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 p
a
y
, 
to
 m
e
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
, 

b
y
 r
a
c
e
, 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 e
tc
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 E
x
a
m
in
e
 e
a
c
h
 g
ra
d
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 p
a
y
 w
it
h
in
 e
a
c
h
 g
ra
d
e
. 

•
 
F
in
d
 o
u
t 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 p
a
id
 i
s
 a
rr
iv
e
d
 a
t 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 P
D
R
. 

•
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 b
ia
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 h
ig
h
 s
c
o
re
s
 a
re
 

g
iv
e
n
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
re
b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
ia
s
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
re
w
a
rd
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
re
 c
le
a
rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 e
q
u
a
l 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
in
 H
D
C
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
n
 p
a
y
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
?
 

P
ro
p
e
rl
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
to
 

e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
in
g
 b
e
h
in
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 

re
c
o
rd
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 o
f 
th
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l.
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

   A
p
p
ra
is
e
r/
a
p
p
ra
is
e
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
  

 R
e
v
ie
w
 P
a
n
e
l 
to
 b
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 A
p
p
ra
is
e
e
 /
A
p
p
ra
is
e
r 

T
ra
in
in
g
 –
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 

R
e
v
ie
w
 P
a
n
e
l 
to
 b
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
s
 -
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

47



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
2
 

 

J
o
in
t 
w
a
s
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
J
W
O
G
) 

•
 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 J
W
O
G
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
g
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
ro
u
n
d
 

•
 
T
a
k
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
th
is
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 E
IA
 t
o
 t
h
e
 J
W
O
G
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 H
D
C
 h
a
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 t
h
e
s
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

•
 
G
e
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 J
W
O
G
 t
o
 g
e
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
is
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
n
 E
IA
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
. 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

L
e
is
u
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
a
re
 

p
o
lic
y
  

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
n
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
re
a
te
d
 u
n
fa
ir
ly
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
: 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 l
ia
is
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
; 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
re
a
, 
d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
b
o
a
rd
s
. 
A
d
v
is
o
ry
 b
o
a
rd
s
. 
H
D
C
 

P
o
lic
y
 d
iv
is
io
n
. 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 l
ia
is
o
n
s
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
a
c
e
, 
re
lig
io
n
, 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
, 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 a
g
e
. 

•
 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 
to
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
a
 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 
a
b
o
u
t 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 
U
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
: 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 E
v
a
c
u
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 (
E
A
P
) 
fo
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 m
o
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
v
is
u
a
lly
 i
m
p
a
ir
e
d
. 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 
lia
is
o
n
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
w
it
h
 
H
D
C
 
P
o
lic
y
 
d
iv
is
io
n
 
to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
s
. 

•
 
D
e
te
rm
in
e
 i
f 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
a
f 
a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 o
f 

h
e
a
ri
n
g
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
g
e
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
to
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 

m
e
th
o
d
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
. 

  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

    A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

  S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

  J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

48



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
3
 

•
 
U
s
in
g
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
d
a
ta
, 
c
ro
s
s
 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 
e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
d
e
r 
w
it
h
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
in
 H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
: 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 o
n
-l
in
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 
T
ra
in
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 w
h
e
e
lc
h
a
ir
. 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 l
it
e
ra
tu
re
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
: 

•
 
T
ra
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
o
n
 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
fo
r 
tr
a
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
. 

•
 
U
s
in
g
 
th
e
 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
tr
a
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 

m
a
te
ri
a
l,
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t,
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
lit
e
ra
tu
re
, 
in
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 
te
rm
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 
o
f 
u
s
e
, 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
 
in
 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fo
rm
a
ts
 
e
.g
. 
la
rg
e
 
p
ri
n
t,
 
B
ra
ill
e
, 

fo
re
ig
n
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
. 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 
c
la
ri
ty
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
s
ta
ff
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 
h
e
lp
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 
w
it
h
 
a
 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 
e
.g
. 

p
o
s
te
rs
, 
s
ig
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 ‘
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
a
re
’ 
w
e
b
 p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

is
 f
u
lly
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

•
 
D
is
p
la
y
 
c
le
a
r 
s
ig
n
a
g
e
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 
to
 
a
s
k
 
fo
r 

a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
: 

•
 
In
c
lu
d
e
 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
o
n
 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
n
d
 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
to
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
. 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
s
ta
ff
 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 
o
n
 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
n
d
 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
is
s
u
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 P
D
R
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

•
 
R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 
fo
r 
L
e
is
u
re
 
C
e
n
tr
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
to
 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
n
d
 
D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
(c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

  J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

  S
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
  

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

   A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

49



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
4
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
o
lic
y
) 
a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 r
e
s
t 
o
f 
te
a
m
. 

  •
 
T
ra
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
to
 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 
th
e
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
a
n
d
 

w
h
e
re
 s
ta
ff
 c
a
n
 g
e
t 
h
e
lp
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

•
 
T
ra
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
th
e
m
 
to
 
g
iv
e
 
a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 
to
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

•
 
T
ra
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
to
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
, 
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
th
e
ir
 
o
w
n
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
. 

S
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
ta
ff
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

L
o
c
a
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
  
&
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
u
r 
L
H
A
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 -
 c
o
m
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 w
e
 h
o
ld
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
  

 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 S
e
t 
u
p
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 w
it
h
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

fo
r 
re
g
u
la
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 i
te
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 E
IA
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 
  

 

•
 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
e
d
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 -
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

  J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
  

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
x
a
ti
o
n
  

•
 
C
h
e
c
k
 a
ll 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fo
rm
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
m
p
ly
 

w
it
h
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
. 

 

•
 
A
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
la
rg
e
 f
o
rm
a
t 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
n
o
t 
ju
s
t 
b
ill
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
in
d
e
rs
. 

 

•
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 a
ll 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm
s
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

  R
e
v
ie
w
 o
v
e
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 

m
o
n
th
s
  

   

50



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
5
 

fo
r 
d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
s
e
rt
e
d
 i
n
to
 o
n
-l
in
e
 f
o
rm
s
. 

 

•
 
A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 H
D
C
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

•
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 s
ix
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 a
 

ra
n
d
o
m
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
t 
a
ll 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
g
e
s
 

 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 P
D
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
v
e
r 
n
e
x
t 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th
s
  

 O
v
e
r 
n
e
x
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
  

  O
v
e
r 
n
e
x
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

O
x
m
o
o
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 (
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
) 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 P
a
k
is
ta
n
i 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
re
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 N
M
 B
o
a
rd
. 
 

•
 
m
o
re
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
m
ig
ra
n
t 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
m
o
re
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
L
G
B
T
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
.g
. 
v
ia
 

d
H
IV
e
rs
e
 a
n
d
 E
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
. 
  

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
w
  
g
e
n
d
e
r 
is
s
u
e
s
 -
 m
o
re
 w
o
rk
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

d
o
n
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
to
r 

•
 
M
u
s
t 
e
n
s
u
re
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 a
re
 E
a
s
y
 R
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
e
t-

b
a
s
e
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 J
A
W
S
-p
ro
o
f.
  

•
 
N
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 i
n
te
rg
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
lin
k
s
. 
 

•
 
T
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 f
o
r 

e
th
n
ic
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
o
) 
p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 a
lo
n
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
/a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

N
o
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t.
 

P
re
s
s
 r
e
le
a
s
e
s
 

•
 
P
re
s
s
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 a
id
 m
e
m
o
ir
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 n
o
te
 

a
b
o
u
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
e
a
m
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
  

51



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
6
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 P
D
P
. 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
E
IA
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

•
 
T
a
rg
e
t 
a
 m
o
re
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

m
e
d
ia
 –
 a
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 a
 m
e
d
ia
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
. 
W
h
e
n
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 p
re
s
s
 c
u
tt
in
g
s
, 
d
e
ta
ils
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
g
g
e
d
 i
f 
p
re
s
s
 r
e
le
a
s
e
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 
P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
o
lic
y
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

•
 
P
u
b
lic
is
in
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
. 

  S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

   O
n
 g
o
in
g
 

 O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

P
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
  

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 n
o
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
d
e
s
ig
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 
T
o
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
h
a
t 

p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 h
o
ld
 s
u
rg
e
ry
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt
. 

•
 
D
is
c
u
s
s
 e
a
c
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
to
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
y
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 -
 M
a
k
e
 

s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

•
 
T
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 w
id
e
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

m
in
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
r 
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 h
a
v
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
- 
F
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
im
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
m
 

•
 
T
o
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
 w
h
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
 

T
h
is
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
u
a
l 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
b
u
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
s
 

fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 A
d
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
to
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  

   O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

  O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

P
a
rk
s
, 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 &
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 
P
u
b
lic
/G
re
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

•
 
C
u
lt
u
ra
lly
 S
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
it
y
 w
h
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

52



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 
1
7
 

h
o
w
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
/f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 b
e
s
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
/e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
lic
y
 (
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
o
rm
a
ts
) 

 O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

W
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 n
e
w
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
lic
y
 

Im
m
e
d
ia
te
 o
n
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
u
s
e
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
  

W
h
is
tl
e
 b
lo
w
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
  

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
fo
rm
s
 b
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
a
d
in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 -
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
IM
D
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
p
a
g
e
s
 

re
a
d
a
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 R
e
a
d
 S
p
e
a
k
e
r 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
. 
 

 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
  

 

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 E
IA
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 

Y
e
a
r 
3
  

E
IA
’s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 0
8
/0
9
 h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
 i
n
 r
e
d
 

 
1
 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
/p
o
li
c
y
/p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
/p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
o
li
c
y
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
  

P
ri
o
ri
ty
  

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
 

H
R
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
 &
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
&
 

s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
, 
g
o
o
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
&
 f
o
s
te
r 
a
 c
u
lt
u
re
 o
f 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

D
ig
n
it
y
 a
t 
w
o
rk
 

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 c
o
d
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
s
a
la
ri
e
s
 

In
c
re
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

D
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 &
 c
a
p
a
b
ili
ty
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
E
L
A
G
) 

M
o
b
ile
 &
 h
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

L
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
  

T
o
u
ri
s
m
  

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
o
li
ti
c
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 &
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

E
le
c
to
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
o
c
a
l 
L
a
n
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

T
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
la
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
la
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
 s
e
a
rc
h
e
s
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
ro
g
ra
p
h
ic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 i
m
a
g
e
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
  

A
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t,
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 u
s
e
 o
f 
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
  

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
o
w
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

it
s
 i
n
te
re
s
ts
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
e
 &
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
  

L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
  

Im
p
re
s
s
io
n
s
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 P
la
n
 (
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
) 

J
u
n
io
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 &
 c
rè
c
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 (
J
u
n
e
 0
9
) 

N
O
P
 &
 E
A
P
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 (
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
) 

L
e
is
u
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
9
) 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

55



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 E
IA
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 

Y
e
a
r 
3
  

E
IA
’s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 0
8
/0
9
 h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
 i
n
 r
e
d
 

 
2
 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
/p
o
li
c
y
/p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
/p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
o
li
c
y
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
  

P
ri
o
ri
ty
  

L
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
/s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 

b
y
 L
e
is
u
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 E
IA
 

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 &
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 n
o
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
o
lic
y
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 w
ri
tt
e
n
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

In
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
re
d
it
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
in
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 &
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
, 
p
a
y
ro
ll,
 &
 t
re
a
s
u
ry
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

D
e
b
t 
re
c
o
v
e
ry
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

In
c
o
m
e
 –
 s
ta
ff
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
/g
u
id
a
n
c
e
  

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
  

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 I
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
k
e
s
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
  

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
&
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
  

N
o
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 –
 w
ill
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 (
R
a
m
s
e
y
, 

O
x
m
o
o
r 
a
n
d
 S
t 
N
e
o
ts
) 

 

A
ir
 Q
u
a
li
ty
  

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
e
s
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
 

 
 

C
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
 L
a
n
d
  

T
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 l
a
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
  

 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
?
 

In
fe
c
ti
o
u
s
 D
is
e
a
s
e
s
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
th
e
 s
p
re
a
d
 o
f 
in
fe
c
ti
o
u
s
 d
is
e
a
s
e
s
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 (
s
tr
a
te
g
y
) 

T
o
 c
o
m
p
lim
e
n
t 
th
e
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

D
ra
in
a
g
e
  

T
o
 a
d
v
is
e
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
w
e
rs
, 
e
n
s
u
re
 s
e
w
e
ra
g
e
 m
a
p
s
 

a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
e
w
e
ra
g
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

fo
r 
u
n
s
e
w
e
re
d
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

56



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 E
IA
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 

Y
e
a
r 
3
  

E
IA
’s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 0
8
/0
9
 h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
 i
n
 r
e
d
 

 
3
 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
/p
o
li
c
y
/p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
/p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
o
li
c
y
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
  

P
ri
o
ri
ty
  

re
d
u
c
e
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
 

G
ro
u
n
d
s
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

T
o
 k
e
e
p
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 a
re
a
s
 w
e
ll 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
in
g
  

T
o
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
c
le
a
n
 a
n
d
 f
re
e
 f
ro
m
 l
it
te
r 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
o
li
c
y
 &
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
a
tt
e
rn
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
  

P
u
b
lic
/M
e
m
b
e
r 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 g
ra
n
t 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
  

 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY   
SOCIAL WELL-BEING                                      2nd June 2009 
 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
(Report by the Head of People, Performance & Partnerships) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members performance 

management information on “Growing Success” – the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 In September 2008 the Council adopted an updated Plan which 

includes 37 short, medium and long term objectives to help achieve 
aims and ambitions for Huntingdonshire’s communities and the 
Council itself.  In addition the Council identified eight of these 
objectives which were considered to be a priority for the immediate 
future. 

3. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
3.1 Progress against all 37 objectives is reported to Chief Officers 

Management Team quarterly on a service basis.  A progress report 
from each Division includes performance data in the form of 
achievement against a target for each of the objectives that those 
services contribute towards. This is supported by narrative on 
achievements, other issues or risks and budgeting information.  In 
addition, a working group jointly appointed by the Panels continues 
to meet quarterly to monitor progress in the achievement of the Plan 
and to consider development issues. 

 
3.2 Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Panels have an important role 

in the Council’s Performance Management Framework and the 
process of regular review of performance data has been established.  
In adopting the updated version of Growing Success, and in 
particular in prioritising objectives, it was intended that Members 
should concentrate their monitoring on a small number of objectives 
to enable them to adopt a strategic overview while building 
confidence that the Council priorities are being achieved.  

 
3.3 Members of the Panels will also find broader performance 

information of help to them in undertaking their review and scrutiny 
functions.  This information can be provided on a regular or ad-hoc 
basis. 

 
3.4 The priority objectives have been allocated between Panels as 

follows: 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

59



SOCIAL 
WELL-BEING 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
WELL-BEING 

ECONOMIC 
WELL-BEING 

To enable the provision of 
affordable housing  

To help mitigate and adapt 
to climate change 

Effective 
Partnership 

To achieve a low level of 
homelessness  

To promote development 
opportunities in and 
around the market towns 

To be an employer 
people want to 
work for 

To promote active lifestyles  Maximise 
business and 
income 
opportunities 
including external 
funding and grants 

 
4. PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 

4.1 The following performance data is appended for consideration: 
 
 Annex A - a summary of achievements, issues and risks relating to 

the objectives identified by the Heads of Service. 
 
 Annex B - Performance data from services which contribute to the 

Council objectives.  For each measure there is a target, actual 
performance against target, forecast performance for the next period 
and a comments field.  The data is colour coded as follows: 

 
• green – achieving target or above; 

• amber – between target and an “intervention level (the level at 
which performance is considered to be unacceptable and action is 
required); 

• red – the intervention level or below; and 
• grey - data not unavailable 
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Members are recommended to; 

 Consider the results of performance for priority objectives and to 
comment to Cabinet as appropriate.  

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Performance Management reports produced from the Council’s CPMF software 
system 
 
Growing Success: Corporate Plan 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager 

 (((( 01480 388035 

60



SOCIAL WELL-BEING (up to 31st March 2009) ANNEX A 
 

Objective  Comments from appropriate Head of Service 
Achievements: Leisure Centres: an 81,000 admissions increase (+4.8%) from last year. Total 1.74 million. New Huntingdon 

Fun Zone averages up to 2,000 new visitors per week.  Every centre reported increase in swimming admissions 
(overall 16% up).  The average swimmers per pool hour is now up by 3 to 24.  In total, 71% of all courts 
available were booked (68% previous year).  There were 267,000 visits to Impressions (256,000 in 07-08).    
Free swims for over 60’s commenced April 1

st
. 

Staffing Restructure: Complete staff re-structure. 30 posts re-graded.  
Renegotiation with Cambs CC on Management agreement: Management Committees terminated in March. 
Replacement mechanism will be Active Leisure Forum. Formal agreement with County still on-going but school 
budgets will be delegated from County in September and the secondary and primary schools will book slots and 
pay hourly for facilities used.  
Completed Capital Programme: Huntingdon LC redevelopment: Phase 1 completed November 20

th
 – 

opened Fitness Studio and Kids Fun-zone. Phase 2 opened late Feb – changing rooms. Phase 3 opened April 
20

th
 – “Pure” spa facility. New reception works commence April 20

th
 with a temporary reception created. 

St Neots Synthetic Pitch: Opened October. 
Huntingdon Synthetic Pitch: Opened February

 
 

St Ivo Roofs: Completed March 
Huntingdon Combined Heating and Power Unit: Work complete. 
St Neots Dry Side Reception refurbishment: Re-opened May. On budget. £250k reception area with auto-
access, toilets, offices, corridors. 
 
Environmental & Community Health Services: 
The Leisure development service has for the first time broken through the 30,000 attendances barrier in 
2008/9.( this represents a 30% increase on the previous year). In particular, the Holiday Leisure Activity 
Programme for <17 year olds had 38% more participation than the target (total throughput 4,625) and the 
physical activity schemes for vulnerable people had 56% more participation than target (total throughput 
24,211). 
 

Issues: Leisure Centres: Late openings of St Neots pool and HLC new facilities were unfortunate but both have 
performed exceptionally since re-opening enabling anticipated shortfall to be recovered.  Synthetic pitches 
failed to hit target (13%) but St Neots and Huntingdon were both closed for long periods of replacement and this 
will be rectified next year. 
 

To promote active 
lifestyles 

Risks: Leisure Centres: Functions at all sites still below predictions and future development proposals recognize this. 
 
Environmental & Community Health Services: 
Funding for targeted projects is often short term in nature and therefore an ongoing risk. Community Sports 
Network funded by Sport England Lottery Fund until spring 2010; changes to national funding policy will mean it 
is more difficult to extend funding beyond this point.  Active at 50 and the Play Project both have approximately 
2 years of funding remaining.  Partnership projects with PCT agreement lasts 2.5 years with funding.  
 
 

6
1



Objective  Comments from appropriate Head of Service 
Achievements: Housing Services: 

• 87 households were prevented from becoming homeless in Q4 of the year, compared to 27 in the same 
period last year (a total of 300 households where homelessness was prevented in 2008/09 compared to 
138 in the previous financial year) 

• 45 households were accepted as homeless in Q4 compared to 41 in the same period last year (total of 
173 households accepted as homeless in 2008/09 compared to 146 during the previous year) 

• A reduction in the number of households in temporary accommodation, from 68 households at the start 
of the quarter to 61 at the end, thereby achieving our reduction target 

• The Home-Link sub regional review concluded and reported to Management Board in March 09.  This 
included a work plan on the development and improvement of the Home-Link scheme.  This has been to 
Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet in April.  

• The multi agency Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on homelessness and the Supporting People needs 
assessment are progressing.  The outcome of both will feed into the review of the Council’s 
Homelessness Strategy. 

 

Issues: Housing Services:  

• Progress on the work plan that has come out of the Home-Link review - this will continue throughout the 
financial year and incorporate the Home-Link brand into a wider Enhanced Housing Options Service. 

• The property purchased by Axiom HA with the help of LAA Reward Grant funding will come on line.  This 
is a satellite to Paines Mill Foyer in St Neots and will free up 2 units in the scheme to be used as ‘crash 
pad’ emergency beds.  

• Finalise the JSNA on homelessness and Supporting People needs assessment. 

• Support Granta HS with a bid to the HCA to carry out a phased demolition and rebuild of Coneygear 
Court to provide self contained units. 

• Progress the development of a county-wide supported lodgings scheme for young people threatened 
with homelessness 

• Participate in the Supporting Review of the remodelling of floating support services. 
 

To achieve a low level of 
homelessness  

Risks: Housing Services:  

• Reduced Housing Benefit levels available to applicants as a result of changes to the Local Housing 
Allowance rates. This will reduce the council’s ability to prevent homelessness by helping HB dependant 
households into private sector tenancies.   

• National and/or local economic factors have increased demand but demand may increase further. 

• Not delivering increased emergency accommodation facilities at Paines Mill Foyer and Kings Ripton 
Court in accordance with LAA reward grant. 

• RSL not successful in HCA bid to redevelop its homelessness hostel. 
 

To enable the provision 
of affordable housing 
 

Achievements: Housing Services: 

• 49 affordable homes were completed in Q4 bringing the year end total to 240. 

• Additional £16,384,411 achieved from HCA to fund tenure switches on current sites where the shared 
ownership is proving unviable due to the market downturn, plus some new development sites including 
Loves Farm and Kings Lane St Neots. 

6
2



Objective  Comments from appropriate Head of Service 
• Sub regional review of S106s for affordable housing underway. 

• Presentation to Hilton Parish Council on exception site policy 

• Claimed £1m Housing Growth Fund from Horizons to fund Mayfield Road 

• Completed on sale of HDC land at Mayfield Road (Exemplar scheme) 

• Completed on purchase of property funded by LPSA Reward Grant for move-on from Foyer  

• Note: Orbit announced as new Zone Agent for key worker housing in the Cambridge sub-region 
 

Issues: Housing Services: 

• Brookside and Loves Farm extra care – project groups to take schemes forward 

• Respond to issues affecting affordable housing as a result of a fall in the housing market. 

• Respond to affordable housing market opportunities from developers and RSLs 

• Complete spreadsheet for Home & Communities Agency. 
 
Planning Services: 
The most obvious continuing current risk is the potential impacts of a prolonged downturn in the 
housing/development market. The nature of the risk is that such a longer term downturn will impact upon the 
local property market knocking back householder and developer confidence and thereby undermining the 
delivery of new homes, new employment opportunities and community facilities. Direct potential impacts will be 
upon planning fee income, housing delivery related grant awards and the scale, content and the potential 
viability and delivery of S106 contributions. However, actual circumstances have resulted in only limited impacts 
to date – developer interest and related application numbers have remained relatively high, indeed the 
expected Planning fees budget for 2008/09 was exceeded because of the receipt of several significant 
proposals; to date there has been only very limited requests to reconsider the financial viability of schemes and 
Planning services have been positively engaging with the HCA, Cambridgeshire Horizons and other outside 
agencies to access support for mitigating the impacts of any downturn. 
 
 

Risks: Housing Services:  

• RSLs and developers not performing to timescales.  

• Availability of Homes and Communities Agency funding via the bidding process. 
 

 

6
3



64

This page is intentionally left blank



A
n
n
e
x
B
S
o
c
ia
l
W
e
ll-
B
e
in
g
-
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
R
e
p
o
rt

3
1
M
a
rc
h
2
0
0
9

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
/C

o
u
n
c
il
A
im

:
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ly

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
e
n
a
b
le

th
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in
g

D
iv
is
io
n
:
H
o
u
s
in
g

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
e
n
a
b
le

th
e
p
ro

v
is
io
n
o
f
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in
g

K
e
y
A
c
ti
v
it
y
(s
)
o
n
ly

to
d
e
li
v
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:

K
e
y
M
e
a
s
u
re
:

T
a
rg
e
t:

A
c
tu
a
l:

F
o
re
c
a
s
t:

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
:

B
y
m
a
x
im

is
in
g
th
e
la
n
d
a
v
a
ila
b
le

fo
r
n
e
w
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in
g
.
B
y
w
o
rk
in
g
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
H
o
u
s
in
g

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
to

b
id

fo
r
e
x
te
rn
a
l
fu
n
d
in
g
.
B
y
m
a
k
in
g
a

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
to

p
a
y
fo
r
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

h
o
m
e
s
to

b
e

b
u
ilt

(N
I
1
5
5
)
N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
n
e
w
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

h
o
m
e
s
b
u
ilt
b
y
M
a
rc
h
2
0
0
9
(c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)
(l
o
c
a
l
in
te
ri
m

ta
rg
e
t
-
a
w
a
it
in
g
L
A
A
d
is
a
g
g
re
g
a
te
d
ta
rg
e
t)

1
7
5

2
4
0

7
0

A
ro
u
n
d
6
0
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
th
a
t
w
e
re

o
ri
g
in
a
lly

d
u
e
to

c
o
m
p
le
te

in

2
0
0
8
/9

w
ill
c
o
m
p
le
te

in

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
,
d
u
e
to

th
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
c
lim

a
te
.

7
0
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
fo
re
c
a
s
t
is

th
e

q
u
a
rt
e
r
o
n
e
ta
rg
e
t
fo
r

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
.

Q
R
T

D
iv
is
io
n
:
P
la
n
n
in
g

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
M
a
x
im

is
e
p
ro

v
is
io
n
o
f
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in
g
o
n
re
le
v
a
n
t
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
it
e
s

K
e
y
A
c
ti
v
it
y
(s
)
o
n
ly

to
d
e
li
v
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:

K
e
y
M
e
a
s
u
re
:

T
a
rg
e
t:

A
c
tu
a
l:

F
o
re
c
a
s
t:

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
:

D
e
v
e
lo
p
C
o
re

S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

%
o
f
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in
g
(c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
)
o
n
q
u
a
lif
y
in
g
s
it
e
s

3
5

8
2
.7
0

Q
R
T

P
o
lic
ie
s
D
P
D

(t
o
s
e
t
p
o
lic
y
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
)/
A
d
o
p
t
P
la
n
n
in
g

O
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
S
P
D

(t
o
s
e
t
s
p
e
c
if
ic

ta
rg
e
ts

a
n
d

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
)/
N
e
g
o
ti
a
te

S
1
0
6
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts

(t
o
d
e
liv
e
r

%
o
f
h
o
u
s
in
g
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
o
n
q
u
a
lif
y
in
g
s
it
e
s
th
a
t
a
re

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

in
m
a
rk
e
t

to
w
n
s
a
n
d
k
e
y
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
ts

4
0

N
e
w
m
e
a
s
u
re
,
fi
g
u
re
s
fo
r
2
0
0
9

w
ill
n
o
t
b
e
a
v
a
ila

b
le

u
n
ti
l
la
te

s
u
m
m
e
r/
a
u
tu
m
n
.

Y
R
L

re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
m
o
u
n
ts

o
f
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in
g
)

%
o
f
h
o
u
s
in
g
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
o
n
q
u
a
lif
y
in
g
s
it
e
s
th
a
t
a
re

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

in
s
m
a
lle
r

s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
ts

2
9

N
e
w
m
e
a
s
u
re
,
fi
g
u
re
s
fo
r
2
0
0
9

w
ill
n
o
t
b
e
a
v
a
ila

b
le

u
n
ti
l
la
te

s
u
m
m
e
r/
a
u
tu
m
n
.

Y
R
L

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
/C

o
u
n
c
il
A
im

:
H
e
a
lt
h
y
L
iv
in
g

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
p
ro

m
o
te

a
c
ti
v
e
li
fe
s
ty
le
s

D
iv
is
io
n
:
L
e
is
u
re

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
in
c
re
a
s
e
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
in

h
e
a
lt
h
y
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

K
e
y
A
c
ti
v
it
y
(s
)
o
n
ly

to
d
e
li
v
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:

K
e
y
M
e
a
s
u
re
:

T
a
rg
e
t:

A
c
tu
a
l:

F
o
re
c
a
s
t:

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
:

M
a
in
ta
in

a
n
d
im

p
ro
v
e
s
ta
n
d
a
rd

o
f
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
&
m
a
tc
h

fa
c
ili
ty

p
ro
v
is
io
n
w
it
h
u
s
a
g
e
d
e
m
a
n
d
(S
C
S
m
e
a
s
u
re
)

N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
/p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts

in
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
p
ro
v
id
e
d
o
r
p
ro
m
o
te
d
b
y
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
(1
.7
5
m

p
e
r
a
n
n
u
m
)
c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

1
.7
4
m

1
.7
4
m

1
.7
4
m

Q
R
T

P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
n
d
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
o
f
a
v
a
ila
b
le

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
a
c
ti
v
e
c
a
rd

h
o
ld
e
rs

b
y
M
a
rc
h
0
9

1
8
,8
0
0

1
8
,9
9
9

1
8
,9
9
9

Q
R
T

D
iv
is
io
n
:
L
if
e
s
ty
le
s

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
p
ro
m
o
te

h
e
a
lt
h
y
li
fe
s
ty
le

c
h
o
ic
e
s

K
e
y
A
c
ti
v
it
y
(s
)
o
n
ly

to
d
e
li
v
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:

K
e
y
M
e
a
s
u
re
:

T
a
rg
e
t:

A
c
tu
a
l:

F
o
re
c
a
s
t:

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
:

P
ro
v
id
e
a
ra
n
g
e
o
f
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le

le
is
u
re

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
s
u
c
h

a
s
:
a
H
o
lid

a
y
A
c
ti
v
it
y
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
fo
r
<
1
7
y
rs

(S
C
S

T
o
ta
l
th
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t
o
f
s
c
h
o
o
l,
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
a
n
d
h
o
lid
a
y
a
c
ti
v
it
y
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s

3
,3
5
0

4
,6
2
5

Q
R
T

1

65



A
n
n
e
x
B
S
o
c
ia
l
W
e
ll-
B
e
in
g
-
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
R
e
p
o
rt

3
1
M
a
rc
h
2
0
0
9

m
e
a
s
u
re
)

(c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

P
ro
v
id
e
a
n
d
fa
c
ili
ta
te

a
rt
s
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
a
n
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

T
h
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t
o
f
p
e
o
p
le

(t
a
rg
e
t
8
5
0
0
p
e
r
a
n
n
)
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
a
rt
s
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
a
s

a
re
s
u
lt
o
f
A
rt
s
S
e
rv
ic
e
a
n
d
P
a
rt
n
e
r
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
d
u
ri
n
g
2
0
0
8
/0
9
(c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

8
,5
0
0

1
1
,9
7
3

Q
R
T

P
ro
v
id
e
ta
rg
e
te
d
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
to

e
n
a
b
le

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le

p
e
o
p
le

to
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te

in
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l
le
is
u
re

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
(i
n
c
E
x
e
rc
is
e

R
e
fe
rr
a
l,
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
S
p
o
rt
s
a
n
d
R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
P
ro
je
c
t,

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
S
p
o
rt
s
N
e
tw
o
rk

a
n
d
A
c
ti
v
e
L
if
e
s
c
h
e
m
e
.!
)

(S
C
S
m
e
a
s
u
re

2
.1
.5
)

T
h
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t
o
n
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
(c
u
m
u
lit
iv
e
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

1
5
,5
0
0

2
4
,2
1
1

Q
R
T

P
ro
v
id
e
u
n
d
e
r-
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
g
ro
u
p
s
w
it
h
th
e
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y

to
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te

in
s
p
o
rt
a
n
d
a
c
ti
v
e
re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
(S
C
S

m
e
a
s
u
re
)

T
o
ta
l
th
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t
o
f
a
c
ti
v
it
y
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
fo
r
d
is
a
b
le
d
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts

a
n
d

u
n
d
e
r-
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
g
ro
u
p
s
(c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

1
,4
0
0

2
,0
9
1

Q
R
T

S
u
p
p
o
rt
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le

p
e
o
p
le

to
b
e
m
o
re

a
c
ti
v
e
,
C
a
rd
ia
c

R
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
H
e
a
lt
h
w
a
lk
s

T
o
ta
l
th
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t
o
f
th
e
C
a
rd
ia
c
R
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
n
d
H
e
a
lt
h
w
a
lk
s
in

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
(c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

7
,2
0
0

9
,3
9
3

Q
R
T

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
/C

o
u
n
c
il
A
im

:
H
o
u
s
in
g
th
a
t
m
e
e
ts

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

n
e
e
d
s

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
a
c
h
ie
v
e
a
lo
w

le
v
e
l
o
f
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s

D
iv
is
io
n
:
H
o
u
s
in
g

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:
T
o
a
c
h
ie
v
e
a
lo
w

le
v
e
l
o
f
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s

K
e
y
A
c
ti
v
it
y
(s
)
o
n
ly

to
d
e
li
v
e
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
:

K
e
y
M
e
a
s
u
re
:

T
a
rg
e
t:

A
c
tu
a
l:

F
o
re
c
a
s
t:

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
:

B
y
h
e
lp
in
g
to

p
re
v
e
n
t
p
e
o
p
le

fr
o
m

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
h
o
m
e
le
s
s

b
y
h
o
u
s
in
g
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
p
e
o
p
le
,
w
h
e
re

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

(N
I
1
5
6
)
N
o
.
o
f
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
liv
in
g
in

te
m
p
o
ra
ry

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

6
0

6
1

5
0

T
h
is
is

a
s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t
fi
g
u
re

fo
r

th
e
e
n
d
o
f
th
e
q
u
a
rt
e
r.
A

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in

th
e
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
in

te
m
p
o
ra
ry

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
,
fr
o
m

6
8

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
a
t
th
e
s
ta
rt
o
f
th
e

q
u
a
rt
e
r
to

6
1
a
t
th
e
e
n
d
.
T
h
e
re

is
a
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

s
e
t
ta
rg
e
t
fo
r
u
s

to
re
d
u
c
e
th
is
fi
g
u
re

to
4
5
b
y

A
p
ri
l
2
0
1
0
.
5
0
in

th
e
fo
re
c
a
s
t

fi
e
ld

is
th
e
fi
g
u
re

fo
r
Q
1
,

2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
.

Q
R
T

N
u
m
b
e
rs

o
f
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
(1
3
5
)
p
re
v
e
n
te
d
fr
o
m

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
e
a
c
h
y
e
a
r

to
2
0
0
9
(c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
ta
rg
e
t)

1
3
5

3
0
0

5
0

8
7
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
w
e
re

p
re
v
e
n
te
d

fr
o
m

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
in

Q
4
o
f
th
e
y
e
a
r,
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
to

2
7

in
th
e
s
a
m
e
p
e
ri
o
d
la
s
t
y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
3
0
0
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
w
h
e
re

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
w
a
s
p
re
v
e
n
te
d

in
2
0
0
8
/0
9
c
o
m
p
a
re
s
to

1
3
8
in

2
0
0
7
/2
0
0
8
.
T
h
e
fo
re
c
a
s
t
fi
g
u
re

o
f
5
0
is
fo
r
Q
1
,
2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
.

T
h
e
a
n
n
u
a
l
ta
rg
e
t
w
ill
b
e
2
0
0

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s

Q
R
T

2

66



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL    2ND JUNE 2009 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 
 

 
NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 – 2014 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) meeting in April, 

Members were acquainted with details of a consultation exercise being 
undertaken by NHS Cambridgeshire on its Strategic Plan for the period 2009 
– 2014. In noting that the consultation period would end on 29th May 2009, 
and in advance of submitting a response to the consultation, the Panel 
decided to meet with a representative of NHS Cambridgeshire to discuss, in 
detail, the proposals contained within the Plan. 

 
1.2 A Seminar was therefore arranged for all Members on 5th May 2009, when 

Chris Banks, Chief Executive and Rachel Glendinning, Interim 
Communications Specialist for NHS Cambridgeshire were present. Members 
received a presentation on the background to the organisation, outlining 
where NHS Cambridgeshire fits within the wider health service framework 
and its links to other health service bodies, together with details of the role of 
the Primary Care Trusts, the patient profile in Cambridgeshire, the current 
financial position of the organisation and details of the future priorities and key 
challenges to be pursued by NHS Cambridgeshire over the ensuing 5 year 
period. 

 
 
2. NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 – 2014: 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
2.1 The consultation document asked a number of questions. The Panel’s 

response to the consultation questions are attached as Appendix A. 
 
2.2 In addition to the views outlined within Appendix A, Members made a number 

of comments on the Strategic Plan and its implications for Cambridgeshire. 
The comments made have been proposed in accordance with the Priorities 
contained within the Strategic Plan. 

 
(a) Strategic Priority 1: Promoting Health and Preventing Disease 
 
2.3 Members would wish to place on record their concerns relating to the 

increasing number of homicide cases by mental health patients. The view has 
been expressed that some priority should be accorded to patients in this 
respect who have been admitted to mental health clinics and then released 
back into the community. 

 
2.4 As a result of increased levels of demand placed upon Maternity Services, 

Members have expressed their view that there should be an increase in the 
level of midwifery staff across Cambridgeshire. 

 

Agenda Item 9

67



2.5 In terms of children and young people’s health, it has been suggested that 
closer working with the County Council’s education service should be 
undertaken. 

 
2.6 Members have commented that there should be more promotion of cancer 

screening, with a view to educating the community and raising awareness of 
the disease, which could potentially result in a reduction of costs in the long 
term. 

 
(b) Strategic Priority 2: Older People’s Health and Care 
  
2.7 Members have expressed concern over the waiting time required for 

Occupational Therapists to conduct assessments of need within 
Huntingdonshire. Some effort should be made to reduce these waiting times 
as the current level is deemed to be unacceptable. 

 
2.8 Additionally, Members have commented upon the need to educate all NHS 

staff that treatment for disabled war pensioners is free to individuals that 
qualify. 

 
2.9 Consideration should be given to the impact of patient health care upon 

friends and family. Adequate support services should be provided as, 
otherwise, it could potentially result in the deterioration of health in others, 
which subsequently results in further demand being placed upon the NHS. 

 
2.10 Wherever possible, effective partnership working should be undertaken with 

key partners and agencies to promote healthy lifestyles.  
 
(c) Strategic Priority 3:  Ensuring that Cambridgeshire has Sustainable and 

Affordable Health Services 
 
2.11 Whilst it has been acknowledged that the Hinchingbrooke Next Steps Project 

is currently underway, Members have commented that they would not wish to 
see a reduction in the service levels currently offered at the Hospital. 
Members are however, mindful that they will have an opportunity to express 
their views on the future governance arrangements for Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital once formal public consultation on this commences. 

 
2.12 It has been reported that efforts will be made to reduce the number of 

operations carried out across Cambridgeshire, with a view to achieving 
efficiencies. Efforts will however, be made to offer patients suitable 
alternatives. Members have expressed the view that they would not wish to 
see a reduction in service levels arising from this proposal. 

 
2.13 Some concern has been expressed over the number of structural changes 

which have taken place within the organisation over the previous few years. 
Members would not wish to see any further changes arising over the next few 
years. 

 
2.14 It has been requested that due consideration should be given as to the 

location of the Health Centre planned for St Neots, whilst also taking into 
account the forthcoming development proposals for the town in the long term. 
A request also has been made that details of the confirmed location should be 
forwarded to the District Council once a decision has been made. 
Additionally, Members have questioned the means of funding the Health 

68



Centre and have expressed the view that it should not have a detrimental 
effect upon the budget for Hinchingbrooke Hospital nor on the Accident and 
Emergency Department which is available at the Hospital. 

 
2.15 Having regard to the transformation of Adult Social Services which is currently 

being undertaken, Members have questioned whether there will be sufficient 
resources available to cover the outcome of the review.  

 
2.16 Members have expressed the view that hygiene and cleanliness standards, 

together with effective infection control, must be regarded as a high priority 
across all NHS organisations.  

 
(d) Strategic Priority 4: Patient Experience and Customer Care 
 
2.18 It has been acknowledged that patients who have paid for private healthcare 

are being denied after-care services, such as physiotherapy, by the NHS. 
Members have commented that the NHS should extend their service to these 
patients as they have, in effect, reduced the demand placed upon the 
organisation by seeking healthcare in the private sector. 

 
2.19 Members would wish to place on record their concerns at a lack of some care 

provided to patients while resident within Hospitals. The example of feeding 
patients who are unable to feed themselves was cited. Members have 
expressed the view that efforts should be made to enhance this service and 
have commented that staff should be more responsive to individual patient 
needs. 

 
2.20 Members have expressed support for the PALS and LINk service, but have 

commented that performance monitoring mechanisms should be in place to 
assess whether service levels have improved as a result of comments 
received. Clear lines of accountability should therefore be evident. 

 
(e) Other Comments  
 
2.21 In addition to the comments outlined above, Members have further expressed 

views on the following matters:- 
 

(i) Risk Management 
 

Members have expressed disappointment at the lack of detail 
provided for risk management contained within the Strategic Plan. The 
view was expressed that efforts should be made to address potential 
increases in levels of cost and demand, together with potential 
reductions in funding. Provision also should be made for the financial 
and other resource implications of major incidents and/or pandemics.  
 
Additionally, Members commented that there were no monitoring and 
enforcement mechanisms proposed, and that it would be difficult to 
measure the performance of the various services offered by NHS 
Cambridgeshire, which would be key for the successful delivery of the 
proposed Strategic Plan. 

 
 
 
 

69



(ii) Primary Care Services 
 

Some priority should be accorded to encouraging rural surgeries in 
order to reach out to members of the community who are unable to 
commute out of their residential area. 
 
Opportunities for partnership working should be explored to enhance 
local community services. 
 
The view was expressed that too much emphasis can be placed upon 
the Voluntary Sector (e.g. First Responders). Whilst the Voluntary 
Sector provides a highly valued service, consideration should be given 
as to the weight placed upon volunteers who carry out these duties. 

    
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The formal consultation period for the proposed Strategic Plan ended on 29th 

May 2009. Permission has been sought from NHS Cambridgeshire to extend 
the Panel’s submission date to 5th June 2009. The Panel is, therefore 

 
RECOMMENDED 
 
 to endorse the consultation response as outlined in Appendix A for 

submission to NHS Cambridgeshire, together with the comments 
outlined above, and to make any further comments on the Panel’s 
response as necessary. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Minutes and Reports of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service 
Delivery) held on 7th April 2009. 
 
 
Contact Officer: Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer 
   (01480) 388006 
 
 
 

70



71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 

2ND JUNE 2009 

 
 

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY 
(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Panel of the introduction of 

legislative changes that place a requirement on the Council to 
scrutinise crime and disorder matters. 

 
2. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
2.1 The provisions contained within sections 19, 20 and 21 of the Police 

and Justice Act 2006 came into force on 30th April 2009.  They require 
every local authority to put in place a crime and disorder committee.  
The committee will have the power to review or scrutinise the decisions 
made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by the 
responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions. Scrutiny of 
crime and disorder falls within the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel for Social Well-Being and the Centre for Public Scrutiny has 
confirmed that an existing committee may take on this role. 
 

2.2 Guidance has been produced, which makes reference to various 
models through which this new duty might be carried out.  The 
guidance has only recently been produced and it differs substantially 
from the draft Regulations.  In the circumstances it has not been 
possible to produce a scheme that adequately captures the detail of 
this new duty in the time available.  This will require consultation with 
the Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership.  As a result a fully 
worked up scheme will be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel containing recommendations on various 
matters concerning the way crime and disorder should operate. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel is 
 

RECOMMENDED 
 
 to note the contents of the report. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. 
 

Agenda Item 10

73



National Support Framework - Delivering Safer and Confident Communities - 
Guidance for the Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters – England – 
Implementing Sections 19 and 20 of the Police and Justice Act 2006. 
 
 
Contact Officer: A Roberts (01480) 388015 

74



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 

3RD JUNE 2009 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REMITS AND STUDIES 

(Report by the Head of Administration) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to acquaint Members with their remit following 

the introduction of changes to the structure of overview and scrutiny, review 
the programme of studies, provide an opportunity for Members to plan their 
work programme for the forthcoming year and set out additional 
responsibilities that the Panels now have in terms of scrutinising strategic 
partnership working. 

 
2. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 (a) Internal Scrutiny 
 
2.1 The Council’s services are divided into portfolios, which are the responsibility 

of Executive Members.  In the past the portfolios have been simply divided 
between the Scrutiny Panels.  Following the democratic structure review a 
new structure for overview and scrutiny has been introduced.  This structure 
is based on the broad themes of Social, Environmental and Economic Well-
Being.  The allocation of Council services under these themes is represented 
in Appendix A. 

 
(b) External Studies 
 

2.2 The Council has a duty to promote the economic, social and environmental 
well-being of the District and, in order to demonstrate that the Council closely 
complies with the duty, this has been reflected in the new structure for 
overview and scrutiny.  It gives the Panel a wide remit to examine any issues 
that affect the District by conducting in-depth studies.  A number of such 
studies have been completed in the past, such as the investigation into 
flooding in the District. 

 
 (c) Study Programme 
 
2.3 At the first meeting in the Municipal calendar, it is usual for the Overview and 

Scrutiny Panels to give detailed consideration to a programme of studies that 
they intend to undertake in the course of the year.  Members are requested to 
consider whether any studies or investigations of single issues within their 
remit might usefully be undertaken.  These might be topical or contentious 
matters, for example, it could be an issue that has arisen in the course of a 
Member’s contact with constituents. 

 
2.4 Performance data, which is regularly submitted to the Panel, and the Decision 

Digest, also can be used to identify study areas. The latest performance 
report appears elsewhere on the Agenda. 

 
2.5 At each meeting the Panel’s discuss a progress report their programme of 

studies.  This report is reproduced at Appendix B. 
 

Agenda Item 11

75



(d) Study Methodology 
 

2.6 Following a recent audit a report template to guide studies has been adopted.  
The template appears at Appendix C.  It will be seem that there is 
considerable flexibility in the way studies may be conducted.  It is also 
important to note that the Panels have a budget with which to pursue their 
study aims, for example, by obtaining expert opinion on a particular issue. 

 
2.7 A number of working groups already exist to undertake some of these 

studies.  It has been the practice for the membership of working groups to 
continue to the completion of studies and it is suggested that this principle 
should continue. 

 
(e) Completed Studies 

 
2.8 Since the establishment of Overview and Scrutiny Panels in June 2000, a 

number of studies have been completed.  These are listed below: 
 

• Anti-Social Behaviour Orders 

• Vandalism 

• Cemetery Administration 

• Arts Provision in 
Huntingdonshire and Major 
Events Promoted by the 
Council 

• Registered Social Landlord 
Rent Levels 

• Bus Stations/Bus Services 

• Bus Shelters 

• Bus Information/Publicity 

• Flooding 

• Post Office Network and 
Services 

• Fly Posting 

• Fly Tipping 

• Trees and Hedgerows 

• Emergency Planning 

• Sun Beds in Leisure Centres 

• The Council’s Charging Policy 

• Tourism 

• Market Services 

• Best Value Review on Access 
to Services 

• Council’s Budget and 
Expenditure 

• Member Development 

• Street Naming and Numbering 

• Levels of Affordable Housing on 
Land Sold By The Council 

• Procedural Arrangements for 
Development Control 

• Local Procurement 

• Town Centre Initiatives 

• St Ives (Environmental 
Improvements Schemes) 

• County Council Highway 
Standards 

• Consumption of Alcohol in 
Public Places 

• Safer Routes to Schools 

• Rent Levels at Paines Mill 
Foyer, St Neots 

• West Huntingdon Rural 
Transport Study 

• Benefit Fraud 

• Service Provision for the Elderly 

• Health and Safety Management 

• Member Involvement and 
Consultation Procedures in the 
Local Plan Process 

• Substance Misuse in 
Huntingdonshire 

• Play Equipment 

• Abandoned Vehicles 

• Services for Young People 

• The Big Gig 

• Biodiversity 

• Council’s Complaints Procedure 

• The Budget and Medium Term 
Plan 

• Rural Economy and Services 

• District Council’s Twinning 
Links 

• Hear By Right 

• Dentistry Services 

• Promoting Better Health in 
Older People Through Physical 
Activity 

76



• Cycling in Huntingdonshire 

• District Council’s Travel Plan 

• Electronic Communication 

• Youth Forum 

• Social consequences of alcohol 
abuse 

• Section 106 process 

• Small Scale Environmental 
Improvements 

• State of the District 
Engagement Events 

• Grant Aid 

• Leisure facilities for older 
people 

 
3. SCRUTINISING STRATEGIC / PARTNERSHIP WORK 
 
3.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 Act 

introduced changes from April 2009 to secure effective scrutiny of strategic 
partnership working and of local area agreements.  The thematic groups 
under the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership have been aligned to the 
terms of reference of scrutiny panels.  The Social Well-Being Panel will be 
responsible for the Children and Young People, Health and Well-Being and 
Inclusive, Safe and Cohesive Communities thematic groups of the Strategic 
Partnership.  The Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership itself is to be held to 
account through the full Council. 

 
3.2 The Panel’s remit also contains reference to the Council’s corporate priorities 

and goals as they appear in the Corporate Plan.  Specifically, this means that 
the Panel will be responsible for scrutinising the Housing that Meets 
Individuals’ Needs, Safe, Vibrant and Inclusive Communities and Healthy 
Living aims of the Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’.  As has been 
said, a report monitoring progress against each of these aims appears 
elsewhere on the Agenda.   Finally, the Panel will have the task of scrutinising 
the Safer and Stronger Communities priority of the Countywide Sustainable 
Community Strategy (Cambridgeshire’s Vision). 

 
3.3 Details of how it is suggested that these strategic / partnership areas of work 

might be undertaken will be the subject of a report at a future meeting. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Panel is  
 

RECOMMENDED 
 

a. to note the contents of the report; 
b. to review the existing programme of studies for the 

forthcoming year; and 
c. to consider the addition of new subject areas to the 

programme of studies. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS    
 
Previous reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 
 
Contact Officer: A Roberts – Scrutiny and Review Manager  

(01480) 388015 

 

77



78

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

SOCIAL WELL-BEING - Portfolios for housing and public health, leisure and 
operational and countryside services; 
 
Housing (Head of Service, Mr Steve Plant) 
Housing strategies/policies 
Relations with housing providers/associations 
Maintenance of housing register/nominations 
Homelessness 
Housing grants, including disabled facilities grants 
Home Improvement Agency 
Private sector housing 
 
Community (Head of Service, Dr Susan Lammin) 
Private sector housing 
Caravan sites 
Community Safety  
Community Initiatives/development/grants, etc  
Arts  
Leisure Development  
 
Leisure Centres (Head of Service, Mr Simon Bell) 
Huntingdon 
Ramsey 
Sawtry 
St Ivo 
St Neots 
 
Operations (Head of Service, Mr Robert Ward) 
Streetscene 
Car parks, public conveniences 
Grounds maintenance, grass cutting 
Parks, Open Spaces, Countryside Services 
Emergency Planning/CCTV  
 
Democratic & Central Services (Head of Service, Mr Roy Reeves) 
Democratic Services 
Elections/Electoral Registration 
Member Support 
 
People, Performance & Partnerships (Head of Service, Mrs Corrine Garbett) 
Safeguarding 
Diversity and Equalities 
Consultation, Engagement and Research 
 
Children & young people, health & well-being and inclusive, safe & cohesive 
communities thematic groups of the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership. 
 
Safer & stronger communities priority of Cambridgeshire Vision. 
 
The housing that meets individuals’ needs, safe, vibrant & inclusive communities 
and healthy living aims of the Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’. 

79



APPENDIX A 

ENVIRONMENTAL WELL-BEING - Portfolios for resources & policy and planning 
strategy and transport; 
 
Environmental & Technical Services (Head of Service: Dr Paul José) 
Strategy Implementation 
Home Energy Conservation  
Sustainability  
Environmental improvements 
Project/Contractual management 
Architectural/design work 
Land drainage 
Residual highway responsibilities/public utilities 
Street naming and property numbering 
Building Control/dangerous structures/disabled access 
Facilities Management 
Travel Plan 
 
Planning Services (Steve Ingram) 
Development control/planning applications 
Planning enforcement 
Development plans/policies 
Planning briefs/studies 
Conservation/listed buildings 
Trees and footpaths 
Transportation 
 
Environmental Health (Head of Service, Dr Susan Lammin) 
Air quality/noise/pollution 
Animal welfare/pest control 
Commercial: health & safety promotion/food safety 
Infectious diseases 
Smoke-free initiatives 
 
Operations (Head of Service, Mr Robert Ward) 
Waste/refuse collection 
Recycling 
Vehicle fleet management 
Abandoned vehicles 
Waste Stream policy  
Cleansing 
 
Environment, and growth & infrastructure thematic groups of the Huntingdonshire 
Strategic Partnership. 
 
Managing growth and environmental sustainability priorities of Cambridgeshire 
Vision. 
 
A clean, green & attractive place and developing sustainable communities aims of 
the Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’. 
 

80



APPENDIX A 

ECONOMIC WELL-BEING - Portfolios for customer services & information 
technology and finance & environment; 
 
Information Management (Head of Service, Mr Chris Hall) 
Website 
Freedom of Information 
ICT network & systems 
Intranet 
ICT Help Desk 
Local Land & Property Gazetteer (LPG) 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
Customer First programme 
Business analysis/improvement 
 
Finance (Head of Service, Mr Steve Couper) 
Financial forecasting 
Budget preparation and monitoring 
Final accounts 
Financial advice 
Payment of Creditors 
Audit 
Risk management 
Procurement 
Treasury Management (Borrowing and Investments) 
Debt Recovery 
 
Customer Service and Call Centres (Head of Service, Ms Julia Barber) 
Call Centre, St Ives 
Customer Service Centre, currently located at Centenary House 
Information Centres at Ramsey, St Ives, St Neots and Yaxley 
 
Revenues (Head of Service, Ms Julia Barber) 
Local taxation 
Revenue collection 
Benefits assessments/payments/fraud 
NNDR 
 
Democratic & Central Services (Head of Service, Mr Roy Reeves) 
Land Charges 
Document Centre 
Licensing 
 
Law, Property & Governance (Head of Service, Mr Colin Meadowcroft) 
Legal advice 
Conveyancing 
Prosecutions and litigation 
Representation at Planning and other Inquiries 
Estates/property management/acquisition/sales 
Data Protection/Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Contracts 

81



APPENDIX A 

 
People, Performance & Partnerships (Head of Service, Mrs Corrine Garbett) 
Recruitment/retention 
Health & Safety 
Training/development 
Personnel management/advice/contractual arrangements 
Payroll 
Communications and Marketing 
Economic Development 
Town Centre Management 
External Funding 
Performance Management 
Comprehensive Area Assessment: Corporate Coordination across the organisation  
Community Strategy/Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership 
Corporate Policy (“Growing Success”) 
 
Comprehensive Area Assessment: Corporate Coordination across the 
organisation (Head of Service, Corrine Garbett) 
 
Democratic Structure Review: Implementation (Head of Service, Roy Reeves) 
 
HQ/Accommodation: Deputy Leader Councillor Mike Simpson (Head Of Service, 
Mr Richard Preston) 
 
Economic prosperity and equality & inclusion thematic groups of the 
Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership. 
 
A strong local economy, improving systems & practices, learning & developing 
and maintaining sound finances aims of the Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing 
Success’. 

82



P
a
n
e
l 
D
a
te
 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
a
te
 

fo
r 

F
u
tu
re
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

 

  
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
).
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 

fo
r 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
  

 

  S
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

o
n
 2
9
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
. 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
a
b
in
e
t.
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
in
 s
ix
 m

o
n
th
s
 t
im
e
. 

  
1
/0
9
/0
9
 

  
 

    
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

F
u
tu
re
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l:
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
).
 
D
r 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 
D
u
n
n
, 

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 
N
e
x
t 
S
te
p
s
 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
r 
a
n
d
 M

s
 J
e
s
s
ic
a
 B

a
w
d
e
n
, 
N
H
S
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 
th
e
 
P
a
n
e
l’s
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

fu
tu
re
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 
H
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 
A
d
v
is
e
d
 
th
e
 

P
a
n
e
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 a
t 
s
o
m
e
 p
o
in
t 
in
 t
h
e
 m

id
d
le
 o
f 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
y
e
a
r.
  

 

   P
a
n
e
l 
to
 p
a
rt
a
k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
n
 

it
 

e
m
e
rg
e
s
. 
M
a
tt
e
r 
to
 
b
e
 

ra
is
e
d
 a
t 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 P
a
n
e
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
A
d
v
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 
w
a
s
 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 a
w
a
it
e
d
 f
ro
m
 H
M
 

T
re
a
s
u
ry
. 

     

   
T
B
C
 

 

   
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

 

C
a
re
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
).
 T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
’s
 

  In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 

b
e
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

in
 

th
e
 

S
p
ri
n
g
. 

   

  
T
B
C
 

 

83



P
a
n
e
l 
D
a
te
 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
a
te
 

fo
r 

F
u
tu
re
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
s
 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

th
a
t 
a
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 P
a
n
e
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
w
 
th
e
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
fi
ts
 

in
to
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

A
d
v
is
e
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
w
ill
 
n
o
t 

b
e
g
in
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 u
n
ti
l 
1
s
t  A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

 

 

   
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

 
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 –
 G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 
S
 
J
 
C
ri
s
w
e
ll 
a
n
d
 
R
 
J
 
W
e
s
t 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 
to
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
P
la
n
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
. 
A
 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 
(C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
a
n
d
 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
) 
to
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
’s
 r
e
m
it
 b
y
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
t 
to
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

a
re
a
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
P
la
n
. 
A
 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 
to
 
in
v
it
e
 
H
e
a
d
s
 
o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
to
 
a
 

fu
tu
re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

to
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 

th
e
ir
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 
in
 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 

  Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 

to
 
a
ll 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
ls
. 
 

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
fu
tu
re
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
 

  T
h
is
 i
te
m
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
g
e
n
d
a
. 

          

  
2
/0
6
/0
9
 

        
 

     

84



P
a
n
e
l 
D
a
te
 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
a
te
 

fo
r 

F
u
tu
re
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

    
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 
o
f 

L
e
is
u
re
 
F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
) 
w
h
o
 h
a
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
is
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
a
s
 
a
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
 
fo
r 
s
tu
d
y
. 

P
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

in
te
re
s
t 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
h
o
w
 

th
e
s
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
u
re
d
 

a
n
d
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 
R
e
p
o
rt
 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
P
a
n
e
l 
in
 

M
a
rc
h
 
2
0
0
9
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 
G
ro
u
p
 
w
a
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 
J
 
D
 

A
b
le
w
h
it
e
 a
n
d
 P
 G

 M
it
c
h
e
ll 
to
 m

e
e
t 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
fo
r 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 
C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
to
 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 

th
e
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
o
f 
le
is
u
re
 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 
a
 

v
ie
w
 
to
 
m
a
k
in
g
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
o
n
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 
a
n
 
e
v
e
n
 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
y
o
u
th
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
D
is
tr
ic
t 

a
n
d
 
o
n
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
th
e
 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 
c
o
s
ts
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 s
u
c
h
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 

   F
ir
s
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
o
f 

th
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 

3
0
th
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 

   H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 

to
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 
fu
rt
h
e
r,
 
th
e
 
lik
e
ly
 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
, 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 (
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
) 
a
n
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
 

o
f 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 
lo
c
a
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
s
m
a
lle
r 

P
a
ri
s
h
e
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
o
f 
th
e
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 
to
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
th
is
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

   
T
B
C
 

   
 

    
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

N
H
S
 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
P
la
n
 

2
0
0
9
 -
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
) 
w
h
o
 
d
e
c
id
e
d
 
to
 
m
e
e
t 

w
it
h
 

a
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

o
f 

N
H
S
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
o
f 

   A
 

s
e
m
in
a
r 

fo
r 

a
ll 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 
w
a
s
 
h
e
ld
 
o
n
 

5
th
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
. 

   A
 
d
ra
ft
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
ile
d
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 
fo
r 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l.
 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
g
e
n
d
a
. 

   
2
/0
6
/0
9
 

85



P
a
n
e
l 
D
a
te
 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
a
te
 

fo
r 

F
u
tu
re
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

 

th
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
 

in
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 a
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

   
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 C
le
a
n
in
g
 U
p
d
a
te
 

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
).
 A
 s
tu
d
y
 h
a
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 

b
e
e
n
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
P
a
n
e
l 

in
to
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 C
le
a
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
a
s
 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
C
a
b
in
e
t,
 
w
h
o
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
th
e
 
P
a
n
e
l’s
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l’s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l,
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 
fo
r 
a
n
 
u
p
d
a
te
 
to
 
b
e
 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

o
n
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
m
a
d
e
 
to
 
d
a
te
 
in
 
re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 

 

  R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

th
e
 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 

  M
a
tt
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 

o
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 
U
p
d
a
te
 
to
 
b
e
 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 
in
 

A
u
tu
m
n
. 

  
T
B
C
 

    
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 P
o
li
c
y
: 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 T
h
is
 i
te
m
 w

a
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 

(S
e
rv
ic
e
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
) 
w
h
o
 
h
a
d
 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

th
a
t 
it
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
a
lly
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
o
 P
a
n
e
l 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

 

   R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

th
e
 
H
e
a
d
 
o
f 

P
e
o
p
le
, 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

   O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
e
re
 k
e
e
n
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

A
g
e
n
d
a
 
a
n
d
 
th
is
 
h
a
s
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 
b
e
e
n
 

ra
is
e
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
g
e
n
d
a
. 

   
2
/0
6
/0
9
 

    

86



P
a
n
e
l 
D
a
te
 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

D
a
te
 

fo
r 

F
u
tu
re
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

 

  
1
3
/0
5
/0
9
 

F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
te
m
s
 w
e
re
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 

fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
fo
rm

e
r 
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 
(S
e
rv
ic
e
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
) 
w
h
o
 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 i
te
m
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
fu
tu
re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l.
 

 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
rs
o
n
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

  S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 
L
e
is
u
re
 
C
e
n
tr
e
 
–
 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

fo
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

  S
t 
Iv
o
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 –
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

  L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

        R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

th
e
 
H
e
a
d
 
o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

th
e
 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

L
e
is
u
re
. 

 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

th
e
 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

L
e
is
u
re
. 

 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

th
e
 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

L
e
is
u
re
. 

 

            T
h
is
 i
te
m
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
g
e
n
d
a
. 

       D
u
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
in
 J
u
ly
. 

  

  
   

 
  

T
B
C
 

   
2
/0
6
/0
9
 

 
  

T
B
C
 

   
7
/0
7
/0
9
 

  
 

 

87



88

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                           APPENDIX C 

  

AREA OF REVIEW DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

 

Appointing Panel  

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

 

Interests Declared  

Rapporteur  

Officer Support  
 

 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

 

Terms of Reference  

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

 

 

 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

 

External/Specialist Support  

Existing Documentation  

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

 

Reference Sites 
 

 

Investigations 
 

 

Witnesses 
 

 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

 

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

 

89



                                                                                                           APPENDIX C 

  

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 
 

 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

 

Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

 

 

90



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 94

Monthly summary of the decisions taken at meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny and other Panels for the period 14th April 
to 14th May 2009. 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

REVIEW OF THE HOME-LINK 
SCHEME AND THE COUNCIL'S 
LETTINGS POLICY 

The outcome of a review of Home-
Link, the choice based lettings 
scheme, has been considered by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery).  The review 
examined strategic and operational 
aspects of the scheme and involved 
consultation with housing 
association partners, statutory and 
voluntary agencies and customers 
of the scheme.  The reported level 
of users’ satisfaction with the 
scheme was welcomed by the 
Panel.  However the review has 
revealed that some customers have 
difficulty in understanding the 
mechanics of the scheme and that 
some users require assistance to 
bid for properties. Continued efforts 
will be made to inform potential 
users and raise awareness 
generally of the support that is 
available, particularly for those on 
the Housing Register. 

The Panel was encouraged that the 
review concluded that the Council's 
Lettings Policy was adequate to 
meet local need and that only a 
minor amendment was required.  
The amendment related to the re-
prioritisation of homeless persons 
by awarding them a Band B priority.  

This change was subsequently 
supported by the Panel.  The 
Panel's views have been considered 
at a meeting of the Cabinet, where 
the contents of the revised lettings 
policy for the Council along with a 
series of planned enhancements to 
the Home-link scheme were 
approved.

SPORTS FACILITY STRATEGY 

The Cabinet has approved the 
contents of the Sports Facility 
Strategy for Huntingdonshire 2009-
2014.  The Strategy will help to 
achieve an adequate range of 
sports facilities to meet future need. 

An attempt has been made to 
identify all sports facilities available 
across Huntingdonshire, inclusive of 
those owned by the private, 
voluntary and education sectors. 
Comparisons have been made with 
national recommended levels of 
provision and the outcome will be 
used to inform future provision of 
facilities in the District.  The 
document has been considered by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery); they  
recommended to Cabinet that the  
strategy be adopted on the 
understanding that the Council will 
not be solely responsible for being 
the provider of such facilities. 

Agenda Item 12

91



Edition 94 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 2 

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENTS TO 
ST IVES TOWN CENTRE 

The outcome of a consultation 
exercise undertaken by the Council 
as part of the second phase of 
environmental improvements to the 
Market Hill and Bridge Street areas 
of St Ives has been considered by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery).  The Panel's role 
is to ensure that the Environmental 
Improvements Protocol has been 
adhered to in advance of any works 
being carried out. 

The consultation reveals that there 
is no clear majority amongst 
respondents for any of the three 
options presented for consultation. 
The Advisory Group which was set 
up to oversee the environmental 
improvements scheme has 
scrutinised the results of the 
consultation and has suggested,  as 
there appears to be no consensus 
for any of the options, that the 
scheme should be deferred from its 
planned start date of January 2010 
to enable a review of the options to 
take place.  The deferment would 
also be timely given the current 
economic climate and the impact 
that works would have on local 
retailers within the town. In addition, 
works might adversely affect 
planned celebrations of the Town's 
800th Anniversary. 

The Panel has expressed their 
satisfaction that the Environmental 
Improvements Protocol has been 
adhered to and has suggested to 
the Cabinet that deferral of the 
scheme is the preferred course of 
action to take.  This would enable 
the formulation of a scheme which 

more adequately suits the 
requirements of the Town. In 
addition, the Panel has suggested 
that financial contributions towards 
the cost of the scheme should be 
sought from the County and Town 
Councils.  

Having considered the views of the 
Panel, the Cabinet has agreed to 
defer the project for three years to 
allow time for the production of a 
scheme which meets the majority of 
requirements of the interested 
parties and not to proceed without 
commitments by the County Council 
and St. Ives Town Council to make 
financial contributions to the project.  
The Cabinet has requested also that 
the results of the Bridge Street 
consultation be sent to the County 
Council to enable them to amend 
their parking orders relating to 
loading and disabled bays. 

RECYCLING

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has been updated 
with the outcome of recent 
negotiations on the contract for the 
processing and onward sale of 
recyclable materials.  In light of 
recent trends within the market, the 
terms of the current contract in 
respect of gate fees has been 
varied. This contract would cease in 
November 2009.  A tendering 
process is currently being 
undertaken for a new contract in 
conjunction with Fenland District 
Council and Cambridge City 
Council. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND 
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN 
HEALTH ACT 2007 - 

92



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 94

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 3 

IMPLICATIONS FOR OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
and the Corporate Governance 
Panel have been acquainted with 
legislative changes affecting 
Overview and Scrutiny, which have 
arisen from the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007.  The changes introduce a 
Councillor Call for Action, which 
enables any Member of the Council 
to refer to an Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel any local government matter 
relevant to the functions of that 
Panel. The changes require 
alterations to the Council Procedure 
Rules and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained 
within the Constitution. Both 
Scrutiny Panels have endorsed the 
content of a guide outlining the 
process for making a Councillor Call 
for Action, and this has 
subsequently been recommended 
for adoption by the Corporate 
Governance Panel to Council.   

Attention has been drawn to 
changes which affect the scope of 
Scrutiny Panel work and the way in 
which Overview and Scrutiny 
reports and recommendations must 
be responded to. In addition, there 
now exist provisions for joint 
Overview and Scrutiny 
arrangements between the County 
and District Councils. These 
changes have taken effect from 
1st April 2009. Legislation relating to 
the scrutiny of crime and disorder 
matters is likely to come into force at 
the end of April 2009. 

NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE: 
STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 - 2014 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has received 
details of a consultation being 
undertaken by NHS Cambridgeshire 
on the content of their Strategic Plan 
for the period 2009 - 2014.  In 
advance of submitting a response to 
the consultation, the Panel has 
decided to meet with a 
representative of NHS 
Cambridgeshire to discuss the 
proposals contained within the Plan 
in detail.  The consultation period 
ends on 29th May 2009. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - 
FORWARD PLAN 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has requested 
sight of items entitled St Ivo and St 
Neots Leisure Centres - Proposals 
for Development, Carbon 
Management Plan, Sustainable 
Communities Act and Leisure 
Centres Performance Monitoring 
Report prior to their consideration by 
the Cabinet.   

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has requested 
sight of the comments on the 
proposed changes to the policy for 
gypsies and travellers in the East of 
England Plan. 

PROPOSALS FOR 
RIVERSIDE PARK, HUNTINGDON 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has considered a 
report by the Heads of Planning, 
Operations and Environmental 
Management Services on the 
outcome of a consultation exercise 
on proposed improvements to the 
Riverside Park, Huntingdon.  The 
Panel has been advised that the 

93



Edition 94 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 4 

improvements scheme has been 
split into two phases to reflect the 
views expressed during the 
consultation and the financial 
situation of the Council.  The Panel 
has raised concerns over the 
allocation of £15,000 for the 
‘greening’ of the traffic island at the 
Bridge Hotel, as this forms part of 
the highway, and as such is 
considered to be the responsibility 
of the County Council.  The Panel 
has expressed a view that the 
amount allocated for planting is 
excessive, and does not support the 
proposed ongoing revenue 
expenditure of £20,000 per annum 
for improved maintenance of the 
wildlife area at the park.  The Panel 
broadly welcome the scheme but 
feel that Phase II of the 
improvements should be regarded 
as aspirational only at this stage. 

Having considered the views of the 
Panel and the outcome of the 
consultation exercise, the Cabinet 
has authorised the Head of 
Operations to undertake a 
programme of maintenance only at 
the park and to liaise with the 
Executive Councillors for Finance & 
Environment, Planning Strategy & 
Transportation and Operational &  
Countryside Services over the 
extent and cost of the work to be 
done.

MASTERPLAN FOR LAND EAST 
OF SAPLEY SQUARE, OXMOOR 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has endorsed a 
report and proposed masterplan, 
which has been drafted following 
public consultation on the preferred 

options for Sapley East and the 
development of a community 
enterprise centre.  The Panel has 
commented on the success of the 
consultation exercise and has noted 
that local residents welcome the 
proposals in the masterplan.   
Subsequently the document has 
been approved as informal planning 
guidance by the Cabinet. 

HUNTINGDON WEST AREA 
ACTION PLAN 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has considered a 
report by the Head of Planning 
Services on the preferred approach 
for taking forward the Huntingdon 
West Area Action Plan.  Although 
the Panel has welcomed the 
proposals, concerns have been 
raised over the highway implications 
of the proposals and the possibility 
that the removal of the viaduct at the 
Railway station would create an 
increase in traffic congestion.  The 
Panel has suggested that a more 
aspirational approach could be 
taken to secure highway 
improvements as part of the action 
plan.

Subsequently, the Plan has been 
approved for public consultation by 
the Cabinet. 

THE RSS REVIEW – 
THE CAMBRIDGESHIRE 
DEVELOPMENT STUDY 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has been 
acquainted with the basis of a 
response to the East of England 
Regional Assembly (EERA) by the 
Joint Cambridgeshire Review Panel 
(CReSSP) on the review of the 

94



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 94

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 5 

regional spatial strategy.  The Panel 
remain concerned over the 
proposals and their implications for 
Huntingdonshire.

The Panel supports the concept of 
development occurring where 
employment opportunities exist, and 
feel that the proposals do not  pay 
sufficient regard to the substantial 
improvement to public transport in 
the county.  The Panel has been 
reminded that the District Council 
will be commissioning its own 
independent consultants to inform 
the Council's response to the 
proposals and evidence at the 
subsequent examination in public on 
the regional plan proposals.  The 
Panel has endorsed a 
recommendation by the Head of 
Planning Services that the District 
Council should adopt the following 
principles when responding to the 
EERA proposal - 

(i) that the emerging 
‘Cambridgeshire Growth 
Strategy’ is underpinned by a 
positive commitment to a 
highly sustainable approach 
that will both direct policy 
development and influence 
the proposed spatial pattern 
of development; 

(ii) that the emerging 
‘Cambridgeshire Growth 
Strategy’ principally 
reinforces and builds upon 
the established sequential 
approach to the direction of 
further growth within 
Cambridgeshire;

(iii)  that the emerging 
‘Cambridgeshire Growth 
Strategy’ acknowledges that 

there is limited capacity for 
additional growth above the 
established RSS levels and 
therefore any targets for 
growth up to 2031 must 
reflect the lower rather than 
the higher NHPAU scenarios; 

(iv) that the emerging 
‘Cambridgeshire Growth 
Strategy’ acknowledges the 
need to utilise the capacity, 
of, and the opportunities 
created by, existing and 
committed transport and 
other infrastructure provision; 

(v) that the emerging 
‘Cambridgeshire Growth 
Strategy’ acknowledges the 
essential needs to co-locate 
homes with jobs.  As the 
economic models favour jobs 
growth in the south of the 
county and acknowledge the 
challenges associated with 
the potential job creation in 
the north of the County, then 
that is where the majority of 
new homes need to be 
located; and 

(vi) that the emerging 
‘Cambridgeshire Growth 
Strategy’ recognises that 
whilst the market towns could 
sustainably accommodate 
further growth, and indeed 
such growth could aid their 
regeneration, these market 
towns do have environmental 
capacities that need to be 
respected.

These principles together with a 
suggestion for testing options for 
higher growth have been endorsed 
by the Cabinet.  At the same time, 

95



Edition 94 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 6 

the Cabinet has requested the 
County Council's Cabinet to take 
appropriate account of the District 
Council's statements of support and 
concerns and to amend the basis of 
its suggested advice to EERA 
accordingly.

SMALL BUSINESS
ENGAGEMENT ACCORD 

The Cabinet has agreed to adopt 
the Federation of Small Businesses 
Accord, a voluntary code of practice 
for local authorities which seeks to 
maintain or encourage a productive 
dialogue with local businesses. 

ENFORCEMENT ACTION 

The Development Control Panel has 
noted action taken by the Council to 
obtain an injunction to prevent 
unauthorised occupation of a site for 
residential development off the 
A1123, Needingworth Road, 
Bluntisham.  No further 
development has subsequently 
taken place on site. 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

Having considered the level of 
activity of the Development Control 
Services during the period 1st 
October to 31st December, 2008, 
the Development Control Panel has 
welcomed a report that Government 
performance targets for the 
determination of major, minor and 
other applications within the 
prescribed timescales had all been 
exceeded  over this period. 

96


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN
	5 ST NEOTS LEISURE CENTRE DEVELOPMENT
	7 CORPORATE EQUALITY POLICY: ACTION PLAN PROGRESS
	appendix 1 CEP action plan progress May 09
	appendix 2 CEP action plan 2009 10
	appendix 3 Results from EIAs
	Appendix 4 EIA timetable 09 10

	8 PERFORMANCE MONITORING
	Performance Monitoring Report Annex

	9 NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 - 2014: CONSULTATION RESPONSE
	Appendix A - NHS Consultation Response

	10 CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY
	11 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - REMITS AND STUDIES
	2 ALLOCATION OF SCRUTINY PORTFOLIOS
	Progress Report - Social Well-Being
	HDC Scrutiny Working Group Template

	12 SCRUTINY

